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PRESIDENT’S REVIEW 
 
2010 was a year of consolidation and planning for the BWF, a year which saw the 
preparatory work for a new season of the BWF Super Series 2011–2013 and the 
media and commercial agreements underpinning this.  
 
It was also a year which saw significant progress in the area of development with 
the approval of the BWF Development Plan 2011 – 2013, and a year in which we 
saw the delivery of very successful BWF major events in Kuala Lumpur, Paris and 
Guadalajara together with the hugely successful inaugural Youth Olympic Games 
in Singapore. 
 
2010 was a year where the BWF positioned itself well for the integration of the 
Parabadminton World Federation into the BWF governance and management 
structure and where we achieved the status of IPC Recognised International 
Federation.  
 
May 2011 will mark the half way point for our Council term and as we look towards London 2012 Olympic Games, it 
is time for us to also reflect on our achievements to date in the first half of our four year term. 
 
 
MEDIA AND COMMERCIAL PARTNERS 

The Marketing and Events Committee together with Thomas Lund, COO, worked effectively in 2010 to secure the 
key structural changes underpinning the media and commercial arrangements for our events, both the OSIM 
BWF World Superseries 2011–2013 and BWF Major Events.  
 
This was a huge task involving the review of the commercial models for the events, negotiations with potential 
media and commercial partners for 2011 and beyond, the re-structure of the Superseries into a two level Series, 
together with selection of hosts for the restructured OSIM BWF World Superseries. 
 
The BWF has now significant media and commercial 
partners for the OSIM BWF World Superseries and for 
our Major Events, and I am very pleased to report that the 
work carried out by our Committees and staff in 2010 has 
placed the BWF on a much stronger financial footing as 
we look towards 2013 and beyond. 
 
For the OSIM BWF World Superseries, you will witness a significant upgrading of the quality of the events. We 
are building the quality of media coverage of the sport globally. This is important in enhancing our media 
coverage and building our fan base. 
 
You will see from 2011, stronger branding elements for the Superseries and a significantly increased prize pool for 
players with the first million dollar prize pool for any badminton event. This is a major achievement for the sport. 
 
The new commercial structure will provide a stable financial situation for the BWF, which is extremely important 
for building a strong future development platform.  
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EVENTS  

We were very pleased with the outcome of the three BWF world events hosted in 2010 and I wish to put on 
record our appreciation to the Members of Malaysia, Mexico and France for hosting these. 
 
 The Thomas Cup and Uber Cup Finals 
were successfully held in Kuala Lumpur, 
Malaysia 9-16 May while Paris was the 
host for the YONEX BWF World 
Championships 23-29 August at the 
Coubertin Arena – a very successful 
event for the BWF. This was the first time 
the BWF World Championships were 
hosted in France and the first time mobile 
technology was used to broadcast 
information about the event.  
 
Another first was the hosting of the BWF 
World Junior Championships in 
Guadalajara Mexico from 16 to 25 April 
and whilst this was a long journey for 
many, the large numbers of teams attending was a positive sign for this Youth Olympic Games qualifying event. 
This also gave an important opportunity for Pan American teams to be at the Championships in much larger 
numbers. 
 
The inaugural Youth Olympic Games 14-26 August in Singapore was a great success and I am very pleased to 
note the quality of the badminton event and the diversity of the players taking part in badminton. Youth badminton 
is my passion and the worlds youth were very well represented at the badminton. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT 

A core area of work in 2010 was the planning of our development activities. The Development Committee has 
focused well on the core elements of a plan towards Rio 2016. This plan takes a long term view of development 
and focuses our investment on sustainable development activities.  
 

Moving forward, the BWF and Continental 
Confederations will focus on key areas such as youth 
badminton - schools badminton in particular, coach 
education, the training and education of technical 
officials, administrators and event managers and 
activities to gain new Members and support those 
whose badminton system is considered “less 
developed”. 
 
In the area of development the key projects for 
Schools Badminton and Coach Education are 
priorities for 2011 with the delivery of resources / 
training materials late in 2011.  
 

 
In August, the BWF and Peace and Sport signed an MOU, whereby we will be working together in the future on 
shared initiatives to use badminton as a tool for peace, supporting vulnerable youth in regions that have 
undergone conflict or disasters. We expect to see projects in Columbia and East Timor to get underway in 2011.  
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CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATIONS 

The Continental Confederations are a critical part of our development strategy in the sport, and in 2010 the 
Council approved a new structure for Continental Confederation development grants. This new structure will see 
an additional investment by the BWF, and in 2011 there will be US$1,195,000 available for Continental 
Confederations to access for planned regional development activities. 
 
The partnerships with the Continental Confederations is critical and we must continue to build a strong working 
relationship to ensure we maximize development outcomes for badminton worldwide. 
 
 
PARA-BADMINTON 
 

The preparation work has been completed for the Parabadminton 
World Federation (PBWF) to come under our governance structure. 
This will be considered by the membership in the May 2011 AGM.  
 
The integration of the PBWF under our governance and management 
structure will give us the opportunity invest more in the development of 
para-badminton and eventually to see us as part of the Paralympic 
Family. A major step towards this goal was the recognition in 
December of the BWF as an IPC Recognised International 
Organisation.   

 
 
OLYMPIC GAMES 2012 

Following the agreement with LOCOG for the relocation of badminton to Wembley Arena, we are pleased to 
report that we have a very productive working relationship with LOCOG. Plans are shaping well for the badminton 
event and I believe that this will be delivered to the highest standards.  
 
May 2011 will see the start of the Olympic Qualification period and an intense effort by players from all over the 
world to try and achieve qualification for the Games. I wish to extend our best wishes in your endeavours to 
qualify for the most prestigious sporting event. 
 
 
TOWARDS 2011 

Other areas of work for the Committees and Council this year included a 
review of our constitution and a strategic planning focus, and these two 
areas will continue into 2011. 
 
Our Members in Qingdao, China in May 2011 will have the opportunity to 
participate in the inaugural BWF Forum. This is an opportunity to engage in 
the discussion about our activities and our future directions. I trust that we 
will have an opportunity to see you in Qingdao, China for the BWF Forum 
2011 and our Annual Meeting. 
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I would also like to place on record my appreciation to the BWF staff under the leadership of our COO Thomas 
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CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
PERSONNEL AND STAFF STRUCTURE 

As can be seen from the comprehensive committee reports within, the year 2010 has been very busy in all areas 
of the BWF. The many activities in the organization have also led to a need to adapt the internal staff structure to 
meet the needs of the increasing demands from both internal and external stakeholders.  
 
It is absolutely crucial that the operational structure is able to deliver a high level of service for both Member 
Associations and internal Committee members, so the staff, is on a day to day basis, able to achieve the goals 
that has been set for the organization. 
 
With the closing of the Lausanne office in Switzerland the Headquarters in Kuala Lumpur becomes the sole 
operational hub for badminton activities. However a high focus remains from both the political and operational 
side of the organization to interact with key stakeholders in Lausanne and frequent and strategic visits to 
Lausanne by key BWF people is essential. 
 
Within the development area a new structure has been implemented where Ian Wright has joined the 
organization and is under the leadership of the Director of Operations, running the operational part of the 
development work.  
 
In the Events Department the OSIM BWF World Superseries has created a need to build a team which can 
deliver the commercial, media and technical sides, and therefore Selvaamresh Supramaniam, formerly 
Communications Manager,  has been designated the role of Superseries Marketing Manager.  
 
At the time of this report, the BWF is in the process of finalizing the employment of a further three support staff to 
ensure delivery of the operational goals within communications and administration.  
 
Overall the main focus remains to ensure focus on efficiency and upgrading processes and workflows to serve 
the Membership and the political levels of organisation better. 
 
 
IT AND STRATEGIC COMMUNICATION 

With the opening of a new website in August 2010, BWF 
has taken a first step to upgrade the various IT-tools that 
can facilitate communication to both Members and fans. 
This was however only the first small step in developing 
IT-tools, and in 2011, in the Events Department, a series of 
new tools will be made available for the Member 
Associations to improve quality and efficiency of event 
planning and operations.  
 
The Online Entry System is an example. This is already, at 
the time of this report, in use for Level 1-3 tournaments, 
and the aim is to make this tool available for all 
international tournaments. Furthermore BWF is making 
Tournament Planner (tournament management system) available free of charge to all Member Associations, 
which makes it possible to easily and quickly update all work flows in the tournament management process and 
getting a consistent world ranking information in a timely manner. 
 
Next step in the development will be a log-in area where Member Associations can update own data on the 
Member and all their players. This is an extremely important development to ensure regular updates, especially 
players data to be able to provide all the fans with a precise and updated players profile.  
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Furthermore efforts are being made to be able to issue more frequent newsletters and so that the BWF is able to 
update Member Associations and fans about the great new Event Structures, BWF activities and generally to 
show the essence and diversity of world badminton. 
 
The work within the IT-area will continue to benefit both Member Associations and Continental Confederations. 
 
INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS  

The BWF continued to played an active role in participating in the International Sports community network in 
particular with the IOC and related institutions including Olympic Solidarity, ASOIF, SportAccord, Peace and 
Sport, FISU and WADA.  
 
The BWF also made its presence felt at the Betting Forum organized by ASOIF and one by the IOC, IF Forum, 
SportAccord, Peace and Sport International Forum as well as various visits to IOC stakeholders in Lausanne in 
2010. The BWF continues to have a strategic approach to representation at forums, meetings and events and to 
continue building strong relations with the Olympic community. 
 
Representation at international multi-sport events was another crucial element to building our international 
relations and network and these in 2010 included the Youth Olympic Games in Singapore in August, 
Commonwealth Games in Delhi in October, the Asian Games in Guangzhou in November and Asian Para Games in 
Guangzhou in December.  
 
 
COUNCIL AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING SUPPORT  

Throughout 2010 the BWF office continued to 
provide secretarial support for the various Council 
and Executive Board meetings. The focus has been 
on continuous improvement of the services the 
office provides these meetings and smooth 
logistics for the visiting Council and Executive 
Board members in the host cities where meetings 
are held. 
 
2010 saw meetings held in Birmingham (Executive 
Board – 13 March), Kuala Lumpur (AGM – 15 May, 
Committees – 17 – 20 May and Council 1 and 2 – 14 
and 21 May respectively), Paris (Executive Board – 
28 August) and the final meeting of the year in 
Langkawi, Malaysia (Committees 29 Nov – 2 
December and Council 3 December). 
 
Meetings through the year were efficiently run, and the Council, in a move to make the preparation easier for the 
office staff and to support a more environmentally friendly approach, decided that from 2011, the meetings would 
be paperless – and iPads would be used instead. 
 
 
ANTI-DOPING  

The BWF continues with its Anti-doping Programme throughout 2010. A number of elements from the 2010 
programme are worth noting here: 
 

o A smaller Registered Testing Pool of 90 players (compared to 250 in 2009) 
o An increase in the number of out of competition testing 
o One Adverse Analytical Finding from the “out-of-competition” testing which triggered a case before the 

Doping Hearing Panel where an Anti-doping Rule Violation was confirmed and the player banned for two 
years 
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o A modest increase in “in-competition” testing 
o A number of “Filing Failures” and “Missed Tests” recorded against players who had not complied with 

the Whereabouts requirements. 
 

 
We are pleased to report the ADAMS – the online management tool for recording Whereabouts – is being used 
well and all players on the Registered testing Pool, are recording Whereabouts through this tool.  
 
In 2011 there will be a greater emphasis on education. Unfortunately the education programme did not take place 
at the BWF World Junior Championships, however those attending the inaugural Youth Olympic Games took part 
in an extensive anti-doping education programme as part of their Games experience. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
 
On behalf of the BWF office and the staff, I would like to sincerely thank Dr Kang Young Joong, President, our 
Deputy President Paisan Rangsikitpho, Chairs of Committees, and Council for their continued support in the day to 
day management of the BWF operations. 
 
I would like to thank Stuart Borrie, Director of Operations for his professionalism in carrying out his duties and in 
supporting the BWF management team. 
 
A special thank you to the BWF staff who have worked hard throughout the year and continuously improved what 
we do day to day –Darren Parks, Venugopal Mahalingam, Sharon Chan, Ian Wright, Patricia Wong, Noridah 
Jamil, Michelle Nyam, Esther Lim, R. Shanmugam, S. Selvam and R. Jeyanathan. 
 
 
Thomas Lund 

Chief Operating Officer 
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ADMINISTRATION 
 
The year has been a busy one for the Committee which oversaw a review of the BWF Constitution, guided the 
renewal agreement with the Malaysian Government for the office location in Kuala Lumpur, oversaw legal 
matters and initiated a review of the BWF strategic plan. 
 
 
BWF OFFICE, ADMINISTRATION AND STAFFING 

Staffing 

The Executive Board at its March 2010 meeting in Birmingham decided to restructure the Development 
Department and bring the management of this area back to the headquarters in Kuala Lumpur. The department 
had been located in the BWF Lausanne office with Gunther Huber being the staff member in this area. 
 
The restructure and the departments re-location to KL allowed greater day to day interaction with other areas of 
the BWF. Gunther Huber left the BWF at the end of June 2010 following the relocation after five years in two 
development roles with the BWF. We wish to acknowledge and thank Gunther for his significant contribution to 
this area. 
 
The Development Department became the responsibility of Stuart Borrie, Director of Operations and a 
Development Manager was recruited for the role to be based in KL. 
 
Ian Wright joined the BWF as Development Manager in early September 2010 and brought to the department a 
wealth of knowledge and expertise in key project areas of development. 
 
In December, BWF Council decided to continue to build the professional staff further to assist in servicing new 
areas in 2011 particularly the OSIM BWF World Superseries 2011 – 2013.  Three positions would be advertised in 
January 2011.  
 
 
Kuala Lumpur Office 

Following Council’s approval in November 2009, The location contract with the Malaysian Government was 
extended for 4 years to July 2013. 
The Malaysian Government committed to providing tax exemption status for the term of the new contract.  
 
 
Lausanne Office 

The Council has over the past year been reviewing the role of the Lausanne office against its original intention to 
provide a day to day link between the BWF and key stakeholders in the IOC, ASOIF and other international 
federations.  
 
It became evident that with only one member of staff and not the most senior, the role as a representative office 
for the BWF was not being achieved. Therefore the council decided at its December 2010 meeting to close the 
office as effective representation could be better achieved by senior staff and Council members visiting 
Lausanne for key strategic meetings.  
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MEMBERSHIP 

The BWF had six new Member Associations in 2010 and one Associate Member: 
 
Effective date - 21 May 2010 

o Tonga National Badminton Association 
o Kiribati Badminton Federation 
o Venezuelan Badminton Federation 
o Northern Marianas Badminton Association- Associate Member  

 
Effective date - 3 December 2010 

o Sierra Leone Badminton Association 
o Ivory Coast Badminton Association (Federation Ivoirienne de Badminton) 
o Tunisia Badminton Association (Association Tunisienne de Badminton)  

 
With these additional Members, the BWF has now 173 Members of which 5 are Associate Members: 
 

o Africa – 36 Members 
o Asia – 42 Members (3 Associate Members) 
o Europe – 51 Members 
o Oceania – 13 Members (2 Associate Members)  
o Pan America – 31 Members 

 
 
Membership Obligations 
 
The Constitution Review Working Group set up in 2009 to review the Constitution in 2010 reviewed the clauses 
surrounding Membership, Membership renewal processes and obligations of Members. This Working Group will 
continue through 2011 to look at these areas and propose to the Membership at the 2012 AGM, amendments 
which better able the BWF to resolve Membership issues as above, and ensure greater compliance with 
Membership renewal processes – particularly the annual declaration submitted through Schedule A. 
 
 
Members Forum 2011 

The BWF Council in December 2010, in releasing the limitations and formalities of the AGM, decided to plan and 
deliver a BWF Members Forum the day before the 2011 AGM in Qingdao, China. The objective being to provide an 
interactive forum for the membership to provide feedback and contribute to key projects and activities being 
undertaken. The BWF also these this as an opportunity to disseminate information to Members.  
 
 
CONSTITUTION REVIEW 

Following proposals for constitutional change referred to Council by the AGM in May 2009, the Council set up a 
BWF Constitution Working Group to review the Constitution. The Working Group worked diligently throughout 2010 
to come up a range of proposals for change to the Constitution. Although a draft was circulated to the Membership 
for consideration in the second half of 2010, the Council decided in December to allow more time to consult the 
Membership, and would only put to the Membership at the AGM in May 2011, the most urgent amendments. These 
centred on the integration of the Parabadminton World Federation and para-badminton into the governance and 
management structure of the BWF. 
 
At its December meeting, Council endorsed in principle all the major changes proposed by the Working Group. The 
Working Group was then tasked with finalising the amendments to the Constitution in the first quarter of 2011, and 
refer the proposals to Membership for comment and feedback. It is expected the Council will at its December 2011 
meeting approve a proposal to go to the 2012 AGM for consideration. 
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BWF HANDBOOKS 

The BWF office produced two Handbooks and posted these to the Members in 
the second half of 2010. Handbook One focused on governance and management 
and included the Constitution and the list and contact details of Members, Council 
and Staff. Handbook Two detailed the Laws and Badminton and the Regulations 
governing all aspects of the sport. 
 
 
BWF STRATEGY / COMMUNICATIONS 

In May 2010, the Council undertook a day of workshops that looked at the key 
messages, descriptions of our vision / mission / values and key branding themes 
for the sport and BWF. Facilitated by an external  consultant the outcome was set 
of agreed statements about the BWF and the sport. These will be used in a 
strategic planning process in early 2011 with a view to having the strategic plan 
2011 – 2016 approved by the Council. 
 
 
LEGAL CASES 2009 

There were few legal matters for the BWF to deal with in 2010. A number of matters were still being dealt with at 
the end of the year including: 
 

o The BWF taking legal action to safeguard its ownership of domain names 
 

o The BWF initiated legal action to seek damages as a result of the BWF website going down in May 
2009 

 
 
WEBSITE 

In August 2010 the BWF launched a new website with a new domain name www.bwfbadminton.org  
 
The new BWF website was launched in August at the time of the YONEX BWF World Championships in Paris.  
 
The aim was to make the BWF website more interactive for our Members, players, media, fans, partners and all 
stakeholders in the sport with up to date information and news regarding badminton. 
 
Some of the new features include a Head to Head section, Global Headlines which highlights badminton news 
from around the world, an opinion page and a Polls section.   
 
In early 2011, an online entry system would be integrated into the site and launched. This would greatly improve 
the efficiency in the entry processes of OSIM BWF World Superseries and Grand Prix events. This would also 
give greater accuracy and less manual work for the office and tournament organisers. This new functionality 
would be rolled out to Level 4 events later in 2011.  
 
 

Pageviews by month 2010 Visits by month 2010 
December 848,333
November 811,657

October 764,481
September 730,326

August 1,027,431
 

December 1,586,655 
November 1,370,994 

October 1,159,892 
September 1,591,664 

August 1,387,916 
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FACEBOOK 

The hosts of the BWF World Junior Championships developed a Facebook presence for the 
event as part of their outreach to a greater youth audience. 
 
http://www.facebook.com/bwfbadminton 
 
 
The management and control of this was transferred to the BWF following the event. This 
is being managed by BWF staff. At the time of writing this, the Facebook presence had 
8,963 people signed up that “Like this”.  
 
 
ANTI-DOPING COMPLIANCE 

The BWF Administration Committee ensures administrative oversight on compliance with 
the WADA Code. We are pleased to report, that at the time of preparing this annual report, 
the BWF is  Code compliant. The WADA Executive Board will in November 2011, review all 
Anti-doping Organisations regarding the compliance. The BWF will continue to ensure it 
remains compliant with all obligations under the Code. 
 
The Council endorsed seven independent professionals to be called upon if a Doping 
Hearing Panel needed to be called to review an alleged Anti-doping Rule Violation. The 
following are members of this group.  

 
o Dr Finn Mikkelsen (Denmark) 
o Prof. Toni Graff-Bauman (Germany)  
o Dr. Meechai Inwood (Thailand)  
o Dr Anton Zasada (the Netherlands)  
o Dr M Moolla (South Africa)  
o Rune B. Hansen (Norway)  
o Dr P.S.M Chandran (India)  

 
A Doping Hearing Panel was formed to hear one case in August 2010 that was the result of an Adverse Analytical 
Finding from a player from Hong Kong. The hearing confirmed that there was an Anti-doping Rule Violation and 
imposed a two year ineligibility period on the player. As per the WADA Code the ruling was duly published on the 
BWF website and action taken against the player.  
 
The BWF Anti-doping Regulations were amended in December 2010 by the Council to clarify the role of the on-
court doctors and doping control personnel and to ensure “target testing” was formally expressed in the 
Regulations. The BWF uses professionally trained Doping Control Officers, for its major events, who provide the 
testing services. 
 
 
AWARDS 

At its May meeting the BWF Council amended the Award Regulations to streamline the criteria for award 
nominations, make these criteria clearer and avoid duplications in the existing regulations. 
 
A new award – the Lifetime Achievement Award was presented for the first time at the AGM luncheon in May 
2010 to the first three recipients. These were: 
 

o Li Furong (CHN) 
o Horst Kullnigg (AUT) 
o Veronica S. Rowan (ENG) 
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The following awards were approved by the Council at its December meeting. 

Lifetime Achievement Award 
1 Suharso Suhandinata 
2 Wu Wen Ta 
3 Jan Ahrberg 

 
Herbert Scheele Trophy 
1. Cedric Baxter 

 
Distinguished Service Award 
1. Martijn van Dooremalen 
2. Richard Eaton 
3. Jim McKay 

 
Meritorious Service Award 
1. Bjorn von Veh 
2 Edgard Verpoorten 
3. Cor Vanlaer 
4. Tong Wai Lun 
5. Said ElBoukhari 
6. Bert Bruno 
7.  Mrs Bussolino Helene 
8. Mrs Leroy Marie-Christine
9. Mifsud Remi 
10. Panier Pierre Emmanuel 
11. Privat Christian 
12. Dennis Li 
13. Tomoharu Sano  
14. Lin Chuan Chao 
15. Lin Shi Quan 
16. Wu Xia Fei 
17. Yu Hong Jun 

 
Certificate of Commendation 
1. Li Ning (China) Sports Goods Co Ltd
2. Fedex Express China 
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY 

The BWF Council approved an amendment to the Terms of Reference of the Administration Committee to include 
an objective to ensure that practices in the BWF considered environmental impacts. 
 
One area that was highlighted was the considerable amount of paper used at meetings – Council and Executive 
Board. This not only had a negative environmental impact but also took one staff member two days work to 
prepare all the files and cost a significant amount in freight charges to and from meetings. 
 
As a first step council resolved that all future meetings will be paperless with employment of modern technology.. 
 This step will save the BWF a substantial amount of time and money  and the World several trees. 
 
BWF RESOURCE CENTRE 

Ronald Jeyanathan continued to work on Resource Centre projects throughout 2010 including digitizing and 
archiving historical material, researching and preparing background information for award nominees, profiling of 
players and past officials of the IBF/BWF.  
 
The very good work of the centre will continue through 2011. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Finally I wish to acknowledge and thank all the members of the Administration Committee who have worked well 
together and individually on projects. 
 
 
Peter Gacheru 

Administration Committee 

Peter Gacheru (Chair) 
Gregory Verpoorten (Deputy Chair) 
Torsten Berg 
Ranjit de Silva 

Mehdi Karbasian
Sergey Shakhray 
Wayne Somers 
Surasak Songvarakulpan 
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DEVELOPMENT 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The year was a very productive one for the Development Committee. It was a year which saw important 
outcomes including:  
 

o a restructure of the Development Department and relocation from the Lausanne to the Kuala Lumpur 
office; 

o significant progress on two key projects – Schools Badminton and Coach Education; 
o the completion of a Members survey which assisted in identifying development needs; 
o a restructure of the Continental Confederations Development Grants Programme ready for 

implementation in 2011;  
o the drafting and Council approval of the BWF Development Plan 2011 – 2016. 

 
 
RESTRUCTURE 
 
A restructure of the Development Department initiated in March saw 
the department move from the Lausanne office to the office in Kuala 
Lumpur. This allowed greater day to day access to senior staff in other 
departments. The BWF Development Director, Gunther Huber, who had 
been located in the Lausanne office, left the BWF at the end of June 
once the transition to Kuala Lumpur took place. The BWF 
acknowledges and thanks Gunther for his significant contribution to the 
Development Department.  
 
Ian Wright joined the KL staff as Development Manager in early 
September and was quick to start work on the key projects for 2010 / 
2011 – the Coach Education Project and the Schools Badminton Project. 
 
 
SCHOOLS BADMINTON PROJECT 
 
There has been very good progress on the Schools Badminton resource development project. The aims of this 
project are to: 
 

o provide a quality schools badminton resource for teachers. 
 

o support Continental Confederations and Members in systematically implementing this in schools. 
 

The Schools Badminton project is not about making teachers 
into coaches of badminton, but aims to equip teachers with 
fundamental badminton skills and knowledge so they are able 
to give children fun and enjoyable badminton experiences.  
 
In consultation with Continental Confederations in 2009, it was 
agreed that a schools badminton resource should be available 
for Members to implement in school. The BWF Membership 
Survey in 2010 showed very clearly that there is a need to have 
a focus on Schools Badminton. From the survey (n=121) 68% 
said that there was no badminton resource material in Primary 
Schools (63% for Secondary Schools). 59% of respondents said 
that badminton was not included in the Physical Education 
programme for Primary Schools (43% for Secondary Schools).  



 
17 BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

 
The BWF engaged a writer of the resources – a 
Teachers Resource (a series of up to 30 lesson plans 
and supporting video clips demonstrating key 
activities for children), a one day Teacher Training 
Course to train teachers in how to use the resource 
and the Tutors Guide – the guidelines for the Tutors 
who will run the one day training courses for 
teachers.  
 
The resource will be available initially in three 
languages – English, Spanish and French in late 
2011. These languages were chosen because of two 
key development areas – the Spanish version will be 
immediately useful in Central and South America 
and the French version will support all French 

speaking national associations in Africa. 
 
 
COACH EDUCATION 
 
This project focuses on the development of a Coach Education 
Framework and entry level Coaching Resources (Level 1). The 
Members survey of 2010 highlighted the need with 44% of 
respondents (N = 121) stating they did not have a coach 
education programme. 
 
The initial phase in mid 2010 was to develop a Coach Education 
Framework. The framework will outline a pathway for coaches to 
build skills and knowledge over a period time and cover the 
necessary core technical content that will be required at each 
particular stage of player development. 
  
The Level 1 Coaches Resource will be available late in 2011 and will be provided in three languages – English, 
Spanish and French. 
 
 
ON-LINE MEMBERS SURVEY 2010 
 
This project was developed, again in consultation with Continental Confederations, out of the fact that we required 
more information to determine the development needs of Members. An online questionnaire was developed and 
went live in mid 2010. 
 
There were 57 questions covering these key areas: 
 

o Membership 
o Office / Administration 
o Governance 
o Training / Education 
o Para-badminton  
o School badminton 
o Events / Competition 
o Performance 
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Overall the response rates were good and 121 Members completed the survey online – Europe 46, Africa 19, Pan 
Am 23, Asia 27 and Oceania 6. This gave the Development Department and our Continental Confederations 
considerable data to identify development needs.  
The results of the survey have been provided to relevant Continental Confederations to assist in the preparation 
of development plans regionally and to better identify needs of Members. It is planned to repeat the online survey 
in 2012 and every two years after that. 
 
 
CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION GRANTS 
 
The BWF continued the same level of grants for Continental Confederations (CC) in 2010 as in 2009. The level of 
financial support per CC was: 
 

Africa   US$194,000 
Asia   US$278,000 
Europe   US$278,000 
Oceania   US$74,000 
Pan America  US$200,000 

 
Annual development plans are submitted to the BWF to access grants and reporting occurs twice annually – 
including the achievement of outcomes against the plan and the reconciliation of the expenditure of the grants.  
 
In 2010 the Development Committee reviewed the Continental Confederation development grants structure and 
the Council at its May meeting agreed to a new structure to be implemented in 2011.  
 
Key components of the structure for 2011 are: 
 
 
Structure 
 

1. A base level grant allocated to each Continental Confederation to support office and relevant human 
resource functions – key professional staff positions Development Officer and Administrator. 

 
2. A proportional grant amount linked to the number of Members a Continental Confederation has to 

provide services to at the Continental Level. This is on a sliding scale - a proportional amount for the 
size of the Membership in the Continental Confederation. 

 
 
Projects 
 

1. A base level grant for projects that are prioritized by the BWF. 
 

2. Additional project grants - A “contestable” allocation of project money for identified priority projects. 
CCs can apply for project grants based on a plan. A cap on the amount of additional project grants. 
The project priorities link to the BWF strategic plan for the development of the sport. 

 
 
The Council at the same meeting agreed to priority areas for projects for both the base level grant and the 
additional project grants or contestable funds: 
 

o Schools Badminton 
o Coach Education 
o Technical Officials Courses 
o Seminars / training for Administrators and/or Event Managers 
o Membership Toolkit (activities and initiatives to secure new or “inactive” members) 
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At the December Council meeting the level of funding for 2011 was agreed by the Council and this meant an 
increase overall for each Continental Confederation in the base level grant and the potential to apply for 
additional grants in the “contestable funds” category. 
 

CC  2010 Grant     2011 Base Level Grant Contestable Fund 
Asia   US$278,000    US$280,888  US$21,818 
Africa   US$194,000    US$214,564  US$20,000 
Europe   US$278,000    US$309,030  US$25,455 
Pan America  US$200,000    US$205,790  US$19,394       
Oceania   US$74,000    US$84,728  US$13,333               . 
Total  US$1,024,000  US$1,095,000  US$100,000 

 
This new structure meant that the total funding available for Continental Confederations in 2011 would be 
budgeted at US$1,195,000 - and increase of 16% over the previous year. 
 
At the December meeting the Council approved a proposal for Special Projects. The concept is for the BWF to 
have the capacity to propose special projects that benefit a number of members in a region, compliment existing 
CC development initiatives and which support BWF strategic priorities. The aims of the Special Projects are to: 
 

o identify special projects within a region that support specific strategic objectives for the BWF.  
 

o provide additional funding support for such development activities. 
 
The Development Committee in 2011 is refining the model for distribution of development grants to the Continental 
Confederations.  
 
 
EQUIPMENT 
 
Each Continental Confederation receives badminton equipment support of up to US$10,000 for 2010 – the same for 
the past two years.  
 

Equipment 2010 (2009) Europe Africa Pan Am Asia Oceania Total 

Rackets 200 (500) 600 (500) 1400 (800) 660 (660) 950 (950) 3810 (3410) 
Feather shuttles (doz) 1550 (500) 200 (0) - - (280) - (100) 1750 (880) 

Nylon shuttles (doz) 330 (250) 400 (500) 140 (200) 330 (165) 200 (50) 1370 (1165) 
Nets - (150) 140 (100) - 110 (110) 150 (80) 300 (440) 
Bags - - - 55 (-) - - 

Complimentary shuttles (doz)   20 (-) 60 160 60 90 290 
 
In 2011 the model will change and the CC can order equipment based on needs. This will be a part of their usual 
planning process and it will enable the CC to prioritise equipment against the project and other support they 
identify as important for development regionally.  
 
 
BWF WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS GRANT – GUADALAJARA, MEXICO 
 
The BWF provides to the hosts of the BWF World Junior Championships a US$10,000 grant. The aim of this grant 
is to organize social, cultural and educational activities for the participating teams of the Championships. 
 
The organizers of the 2010 BWF World Junior Championships in Guadalajara Mexico provided a comprehensive 
and innovative cultural and education programme for the athletes, team managers, family and supporters 
including the following: 
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o NETWORKing – World Junior Championships Facebook 
(3650 fans) site.  

o Welcome! – The Flashmob – part of the Welcoming 
Ceremony.  

o Tapatío Tour - Guadalajara route - 225 people.  
o Fun Relaxing Fun – The Fair, Agua Azul Park - 300 people. 
o Art + Sport - Agua Azul Park - 150 people (including 

athletes and coaches) 
o Guadalajara in a Box – “Faces” collar - 300 collars 

representing 9 real-life emoticons. 
o Sports & Everything: Interactive displays, and art and 

photo exhibits  - host hotel lobby 
o Young Ambassadors - 11 outstanding athletes from all over the world were named official 

Ambassadors of the Pan American Games Guadalajara 2011 as a legacy to both the world of badminton 
and COPAG (Host Organization). 

 
 
IOC/IF GRANT 
 
IOC supported BWF with an IF Development Fund of US$80,000 split across two development projects. One 
project focused on athletes’ development at the Saarbrucken Training Centre programme. The other project 
related to Technical Officials training / education at the Continental level, and this targeted Technical Officials in 
Africa, Oceania and Pan America. There are two aims to this project – 1) to increase the number and quality of 
technical officials training and 2) to increase the number of BWF accredited / certificated Technical Officials from 
these regions so there is a possibility of selection for London 2012 Olympic Games duties. 
 
 
OLYMPIC SOLIDARITY SCHOLARSHIPS – LONDON 2012 
 
Badminton participated like all other Olympic Sports 
in the Olympic Solidarity programmes. 
 
The deadline for NOC applications for Olympic 
Solidarity athlete scholarships for Londoan 2012 was 
1 August 2010. As the International Federation, the 
BWF is asked by Olympic Solidarity for technical 
comment on each application during the evaluation 
process. A number of batches were received through 
2010 – and more recently in early 2011. 
 

1. July - 4 athletes (3 females / 1 male) 
2. August - 30 athletes (17 female / 13 male) 
3. September - 15 athletes (6 female / 9 male)  
4. November – 4 athletes (2 male / 2 female) 
5. January 2011 – 2 athletes (1 male / 1 female) 

 
This brings the total applications to date in badminton to 55 – 29 female players / 26 male players.  The below 
reflects the total number of applications received per continent and the number of scholarships awarded / 
accepted. 
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Continental 
Confederation 

Applications Scholarships 
Awarded 

Africa 
Asia 
Europe 
Pan Am 
Oceania 

9
21 
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3
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3 
-- 

 
The countries that received scholarships were: 
 

o Africa – Mauritius, Seychelles, Uganda 
o Asia – Indonesia (2), Korea (1), Malaysia (3), Singapore (6), Thailand (1), Vietnam (1) 
o Europe – Austria, Belarus, Bulgaria (2), Estonia, Iceland, Lithuania, Russian Federation (2), Slovenia, 

Portugal (2) 
o Pan Am – Brazil, Jamaica, Suriname  

 
 
OLYMPIC SOLIDARITY FUNDED COURSES 
 
The total of US$82,000 for badminton courses was accessed by Members through their NOCs. Six Olympic 
Solidarity National Technical courses for coaches were held in 2010 in Pan Am (1), Europe (1) and Asia (4). One 
National Sports Structure Course was held in Armenia. 
 
The BWF recommends a technical expert / coach for each of these and the National Federations organize the 
courses in close co-operation with their NOCs. 
 

NOC Course Date
2010 

Activity Type Coach Educator Number of 
participants 

Budget 

Nepal 15-21 Feb 10 National Technical Course Manoharan Jivananthan 20 $8000
Laos 1-8 Apr 10 National Technical Course Muhtasham Bin Katan 21 $8000
Armenia 1-10 Jul 10 

26-05 Sept 10 
11-22 Dec 10 

National Sports Structure Gunther Huber 25 $30,000

Bulgaria 23-03 Oct 10 National Technical Course Gunther Huber 18 $12,000
Cuba 12-21 Nov 10 National Technical Course German Valdez 30 $8,000
Indonesia 1-10 Dec 10 National Technical Course Christian Hadianto 24 $10,000
Maldives 10-22 Dec 10 National Technical Course Manoharan Jivananthan 30 $6000
 
 
TRAINING CENTRES 
 
The Council at its May meeting decided to wind down and close the Saarbrucken Training Centre. Investigations 
were undertaken to determine whether partnerships with existing badminton academies / training centres were 
possible to find a solution to assist Olympic Solidarity London 2012 scholarship holders from less developed and 
developing badminton nations.   
 
The Saarbrucken Training Centre closed in September after an Endorsed Training Centre scheme was put in 
place to meet the training needs of Olympic Solidarity scholarship holders who required a high performance 
training centre.  
 
By the end of 2010, the BWF endorsed two centres in Copenhagen, Denmark. 

  
o Greve Training Centre www.grevebadminton.dk  

 
o International Badminton Academy www.intbadaca.dk 
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The BWF, at the time of writing this report, had endorsed a third Training Centre – Tangkas Alfamart Training 
Centre in Jakarta, Indonesia with a fourth in the process of being endorsed in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. 
 
The goal is to assist Olympic Solidarity London 2012 scholarship holders from “less developed” and “developing” 
badminton nations to go to a training centre where they could receive quality elite training and sparring. 
 
 
PEACE AND SPORT 

In Paris at the YONEX BWF World Championships 2010, the BWF and 
Peace and Sport, signed an MOU which defines how the two 
organizations will work together on projects to use badminton as a tool to 
reintegrate vulnerable youth in communities. 
 
Projects were identified in which badminton could be used to promote 
peace, develop sports skills, enhance youth opportunities and develop 
social and personal change through badminton. 
 
Two projects were seen as a priority by Peace and Sport - one in 
Colombia and the other in East Timor. The first of the two projects would 
be underway in February - “Badminton Por la Paz” in Colombia.  
 
 
UNIVERSITY BADMINTON PROJECT 
 
With the support of International University Sports Federation (FISU), the BWF is developing a strategy to have a 
strong presence of badminton at the university level worldwide. 

 
The first initiative took place in Vigo Spain in June where David Cabello coordinated very practical sessions of 
badminton for all delegates at the FISU Forum in Virgo. This went down very well and built strong connections 
with FISU – all the way up to the President. This showcased badminton and got people in the forum to better 
understand our sport. 

 
Another key initiative in 2010 was the hosting of two meetings with FISU in Taipei in September at the World 
University Championships. The initial meeting with FISU representatives was very much a planning meeting and 
this was followed by the hosting of workshops with more than 30 representatives from National University Sports 
Federations (NUSFs) that are there at the Badminton World University Championships. This was used to gather 
information on university badminton, develop strategies for greater involvement of the sport at a university level 
and to build strong relationships with FISU, their continental bodies and the NUSFs. 
 
 
CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION MEETINGS 

The Development Department hosted again at the Maison du Sport International Lausanne, three days of 
workshops and presentations for Continental Confederation in October 2010. The meetings and workshops was a 
time to share ideas in managing and delivering development projects and initiatives and to hear from experts in 
the field. The three days in early October saw the participation of all Continental Confederations and experts from 
Olympic Solidarity, coach education and schools badminton programmes. 
 
 
OUTLOOK FOR 2011 

With the BWF Development Plan 2011 – 2016 in place, there is now much greater focus and direction in the 
planning for development of the sport. Through the Council approved plan, the Development Committee has 
identified clear priorities towards London 2012 and Rio 2016. 
 



 
23 BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

2011 will see the finalization of two key projects – the resources for Schools Badminton and a Level 1 Coach 
Education course. These two are priorities for the Development Committee and will provide Members with 
resources to use in its schools and coach education activities from 2012. The BWF will run a number of pilot 
projects in late 2011 for both projects. 
 
Although these are the main focuses for 2011, the above gives an insight into other areas of continuing work in 
development through 2011. 
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IOC / INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS 
 
The Committee has in 2010, focused on implementing the revised strategies agreed in late 2009. Beyond the 
relations to IOC and the Olympic family institutions, the main focus areas of the Committee are Para-badminton 
and Women in Badminton. The new strategy will again be reviewed and integrated in the overall BWF Strategic 
Plan, once this is reviewed in 2011. 
 
In December 2010 our joint application with the 
Parabadminton World Federation (PBWF) to have the 
BWF endorsed as an IPC Recognised International 
Federation was approved by the International Paralympic 
Committee (IPC) – a major step forward. Our application to 
become a sport in the 2016 Paralympic Games was 
however unsuccessful. Among seven sports applying, we 
were not one of the two new sports granted participation 
in the 2016 Paralympic Games in Rio.  
 
Para-badminton is simply not yet – played sufficiently 
“widely and regularly” in the world, as it is required by 
IPC. Rest assured that in a still closer cooperation with the President of the PBWF Paul Kurzo and the para-
badminton community, we continue to pursue this target. A proposal is now in front of the AGM to change the 
Constitution to assist the integration of PBWF within the BWF governance and management structure – “ one 
sport – one team”. 
 
In 2010 we also saw the first tangible results of hard work of the Women in Badminton Working Group and in 
particular its chair, Nora Perry. The outcomes so far will be detailed in the BWF Forum 2011 workshops planned in 
connection with the May 2011 AGM in Qingdao, China. 
 
 
IOC RELATIONS 

BWF follows an agreed strategy to present our game at its best 
within the Olympic movement. Badminton has over the last few 
years improved our situation on some of the few points where 
we have in the past had shortcomings. We have now an 
Athletes Commission, and the athletes’ representative has a 
seat in Council with full voting rights.  
 
We have equal prize money for men and women, another step 
that the Olympic movement looks favourably on. We are close 
to finalising a process of joining forces with our sister 
organisation for people with a disability. Badminton people 

steadily become increasingly visible in the Olympic family. The feedback we receive from IOC circles is that all 
these moves as well as the increased internal stability of BWF are noted and well appreciated. 
 
Focus is fully on the London 2012 Olympic Games. The BWF, early in 2010, accepted the challenge that the venue 
for badminton would be the revamped Wembley, where also the YONEX BWF World  Championships will be 
played. BWF, with our colleagues from Gymnastics, successfully negotiated a number of special arrangements 
that should outweigh the downside of the Badminton venue being moved further away from the Olympic Village at 
Olympic Park. 
 
The Youth Olympic Games (YOG) in Singapore was the highlight of the year. President Dr. Kang Young Joong, 
Deputy President Paisan Rangsikitpho and COO Thomas Lund with a youthful team of officials took active part in 
the Youth Olympic Games and the social and cultural activities surrounding this first edition of the YOG.  Whereas 
our participation went as planned and was fully successful, the Council afterwards concluded that badminton 
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possibly could achieve more from  the YOG with a more innovative approach to the competition in the 2014 Youth 
Olympic Games in Nanjing, and following this recommendation from the Committee, the Council established a 
Working Group to pursue that idea. Moreover, the qualification system and in particular the age restrictions put 
down by IOC, were not helpful and the BWF will seek a change for Nanjing 2014.    
 
In line with our new strategy, several Council members as well as our leading administrative staff have during 
2010 given badminton based contributions to the IOC family conferences and meetings, for example, as speakers 
or moderators – and not just taking part – and this approach will be continued.  
 
The main objective of all activities is to present badminton and the BWF as an excellent member of the Olympic 
family. An important short-term target is to be elected one of the core sports within the Summer Olympic Games 
again in 2013, for the 2020 Games. Another target for the future will be to have more badminton people elected or 
appointed into the Olympic movement. 
 
In December 2010 the Council decided to close the BWF office in Lausanne. After the Development Department 
was relocated to Kuala Lumpur earlier in the year, several proposals to properly use the Lausanne office to 
ensure high level representation were discussed. However, it turned out not possible to effectively to use the 
office for this purpose at this stage as the BWF was still in the process of building its professional staff at its 
Kuala Lumpur headquarters. Consequently, the Council decided until further notice to invest in BWF 
representation in IOC and other related activities in Lausanne, rather than in office that is staffed by more junior 
staff. 
 
 
PARA-BADMINTON  
 
The promotion of para-badminton – previously called badminton for the 
disabled - is an important goal for the BWF, ultimately expressed as the goal to 
also become a core sport of the Paralympic Games. This is a priority activity 
for the Committee, and we made considerable progress in 2010, as highlighted 
in the introduction. 
 
Within the BWF a Para-badminton Commission was established and a first 
meeting was held in Paris in August 2010 under the Chairmanship of the PBWF 
President Paul Kurzo. A comprehensive workplan for the Commission was 
agreed and subsequently adopted by Council.  
 
At several occasions the BWF and PBWF representatives have again met with 
the International Paralympic Committee, IPC. We continue this joint effort to 
learn more about the requirements, which we together must comply with, and 
how we can find ways and means to overcome the hurdles to achieve 
Paralympic status.  
 
The Continental Confederations and the BWF Member Associations – in particular in Pan America, Oceania and 
Africa - will have an important role to play in the efforts to ensure and to document that para-badminton is played 
widely and regularly worldwide.  
 
It will not be easy, but there is a way forward and, working together, it will be possible to make the dream “one 
sport – one team” come true.   
 
 
MULTI-SPORT EVENTS AND SIMILAR ACTIVITIES 
 
It is a goal that badminton is presented well in Multi Sports events where the BWF is not the owner or organizer. 
The BWF must establish and nurture good relations with the key people in such organizations in order to promote 
badminton as a program sport.  
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The most important Multi Sport Events owners for badminton are at present the Commonwealth Games 
Association, FISU (Universiades and World and Continental University Championships), Continental Multi Sports 
Games events such as the  All African Games, Pan Am Games, Asian Games, Pacific Games as well as the 
Regional Multi Sport Games organizations such as the Mediterranean Games, SEA Games and Pan Arab Games.  
 
The hard and good work, in particular by the COMEBA, in 2010 led to badminton being accepted in the 
Mediterranean Games. However, the Mediterranean Games 2013 were recently taken away from Volos, Greece, 
and the competition for a new venue is not yet decided. BWF will continue to work with COMEBA to ensure the 
presence of badminton in the next edition of these Games, wherever this new venue will be. 
 
Moreover, badminton is selected as an optional sport in the 2011 Summer Universiade in Shenzen, China and now 
also in the 2013 Summer Universiade in Kazan, Russia. Hopes are high too, for 2015 Summer Universiade in 
Gwangju, Korea. To follow this success up, the BWF has applied to FISU to become a core sport of future 
Universiades.  
 
The Committee follows up these successes by mapping all relevant events and selecting those that merit 
particular attention for the next years.  
 
 
WOMEN IN BADMINTON 
 
Under the leadership of Nora Perry and Li Lingwei, the focus 
on ‘Women in Badminton’ has got new life as a separate 
Working Group of the Committee. Focus was first on an 
analysis of the present situation, as a basis for planning 
action to promote the status of women in badminton, but in 
2010 the Working Group added several activities to their 
program. The Working Group has improved networking with 
influential partners in badminton and other sports and will 
continue to work in this area. Communication has been the 
key and this has improved considerably. 
 
A review of status and scope lead to a revised Terms of References for the Working Group, which were agreed 
by Council in December 2010. 
 
It may be said that badminton on court is doing quite well compared to other sports in this area. We play all our 
events together, or in parallel, and participation is similar. A few years ago, equal prize money was introduced. 
However, women are – also in badminton – under-represented in almost all governing bodies, as well as among 
Technical Officials in some parts of the world. The revised strategy addresses these areas and much more. 
 
As an important tool to kick-start activities, the five Continental Confederations were in 2010 given a grant to 
implement a workshop for women in badminton to promote the cause, each continent in the way they thought 
best. This approach proved fruitful and the feed-back from the workshops will be integrated in the future work. 
Next step will be taken in the Forum to be held in connection with the 2011 AGM. 
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FUTURE ACTION 

Success for badminton in the London 2012 Olympic Games will of course be the prime target for the coming 
years, on court and off court. 
 
Successful completion of the integration of para-badminton into BWF and the development of this part of our 
game is another priority area. 
 
Without any doubt the active Working Group for Women in Badminton will enlarge its scope in 2011, in 
accordance with the newly agreed Terms of Reference. 
 
The successful presentation of badminton in multi-sport Games worldwide remains an important item of our 
strategy. International school sport will be a future focus area. 
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MARKETING  
 
Following a consultancy report in 2009 which focused on BWF’s ability to generate income from a combined 
marketing and events strategy, the Marketing Committee implemented a range of recommendations from the 
report in preparation for a new cycle of events from 2011. 
 
2010 was a productive year, putting in place the key structural changes underpinning the media and commercial 
arrangements of events, both Superseries 2011 – 2013 and BWF Major Events. This report highlights these and 
other initiatives undertaken by the Marketing Committee in what was an important year with significant 
outcomes. 
 
 
SUPERSERIES CONTRACT 

The key findings of the Octagon consultancy report in 2009 were implemented in 2010 in readiness for the new 
Superseries 2011 – 2013 season. Key findings in the report that were relevant to the Super Series were: 
 

o upgrading key areas in the Superseries 
o refining  the BWF Superseries event structure – three tiers – Superseries finals, Superseries 

Premier and Superseries 
o incorporating higher prize money for Superseries Premier events 
o creating consistent Superseries brand image 
o ensuring commitment from top players to participate in the top badminton events 

 
A total of 19 Member Associations expressed interest in hosting a Superseries event in the next three year cycle 
– 2011 - 2013. The very good response from Member Associations wanting to host a Superseries event and the 
Premier events was a good indication that the Superseries brand had a bright future and should be strengthened. 
 

Determining the commercial model for the BWF World Superseries 
was a key area of work in the early part of 2010, and this was done in 
consultation with current and potential hosts of Superseries Events. 
 
Based on the Octagon Report two commercial models for the 
Superseries were sent out to Member Associations who had 
expressed interest and a majority favoured the model whereby the 
BWF retained international media rights with minimum a guarantee 
and retained a similar amount of commercial rights as in the first 
Superseries (2007 – 2010).  
 
Following the determination of the commercial model, the next stage 
was selecting the Superseries hosts for 2011-2013 – and those who 
would be Superseries Premier.   
 
The confirmed host associations for the Superseries were given the 
option to bid for the Premier level Superseries event. A total of eight 
applications were received from hosts who wanted to upgrade their 
events to a Premier level.  

 
At the May 2010 meeting of Council the Superseries Hosts and Premier event hosts for 2011 -2013 were 
determined. These were - Denmark, England, France, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, 
Singapore and China hosting two legs. 
  
From the 12 Superseries events, five were selected as Premier Series events, with the Korea Open offering 
US$1.2 million prize money followed by Indonesia on US$600,000. The other three Premier Series events – 
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Denmark Open, All England Championships and China Open - offered a minimum total prize money of US$350,000 
for each event.  
  
The BWF introduced the Superseries format in 2007 to showcase badminton at a higher level of presentation and 
competitiveness, to increase television coverage for the sport and to increase the star quality and popularity of 
the top players in the world through increased television coverage. 
 
The Superseries is no doubt one of the most important drivers to generate exposure for badminton and thereby 
create an even stronger global position for badminton.  
 
We wish to thank all the Superseries hosts for the 2007 – 2010 season and look forward to working with the hosts 
for the next three years – a time of significant upgrading of the Series. 
 
 
SUPERSERIES MEDIA / COMMERCIAL PARTNERS 

In line with the new commercial model agreed by the Council and the Superseries hosts, the BWF advertised 
opportunities for both media and commercial agencies to be a part of the Superseries 2011 – 2013, to sell the 
commercial and media rights retained by the BWF. 
 
A total of eight applications were received after the Request for Proposal was sent out and four were short-listed.  
 

         

 
Following an intensive evaluation process, the BWF Council agreed to a consortium made up of Total Sports Asia 
(TSA) and Singapore based Enterprise Sports Group (ESG) who would sell the media and the commercial rights 
that the BWF had ownership over.  ESG would sell the Superseries title sponsorship rights while TSA would sell 
the media rights for the three years – 2011 - 2013. 
 
 
For eight of the Superseries in 2010, ENOPI supported the Series with a significant sponsorship. The BWF wishes 
to acknowledge and thank Enopi for being a significant part of the 2010 Super Series. 
 
 
SUPER SERIES MASTERS FINALS 2010 

In August, the BWF announced the host and Title Sponsor for the 2010 Superseries Finals. 

 
VICTOR was announced as the Title Sponsor and the Chinese Taipei Badminton Association the hosts of the 
event which would be held in January 2011 due to a full competition calendar that was affected by the 
Commonwealth Games being held in New Delhi in November and the Asian Games being held in Guangzhou in 
December 2010. 
 
The VICTOR BWF Superseries Finals had a prize pool of US$500,000 and brought together the top eight Super 
Series ranked players in each discipline to battle it out for the prize pool. 
 
This was the third edition of the Superseries Finals and follows the last two that have been held in Malaysia. The 
brand is getting much stronger and with the new levels of prize money for the Superseries Premier events and 
the new commercial arrangements the BWF has in place for 2011 and beyond, the future of the Finals looks 
promising. 
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OSIM BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES 2011 - 2013 

At a media conference in early December the BWF announced the Title Sponsor for the 2011 – 2013 Superseries. 
OSIM, a global leader in branded well-being and healthy lifestyle products is the Title Sponsor and moving 
forward with a new season, a new format, the highest prize money ever for the sport will be featured. 
 
The three-year partnership, beginning 2011, will 
include all 13 events in the BWF World Super 
Series calendar, including the BWF World 
Superseries Finals. The agreement means the 
BWF World Superseries will now be known as 
OSIM BWF World Superseries.  
 
BWF MAJOR EVENTS - MEDIA AGENCY 

In June 2010, the BWF advertised for proposals 
for the media rights it owns on its major events: 
 

o BWF World Championships - hosted 
annually except in the year where there 
is Olympic Games 

o Thomas Cup (World Men’s Team Championship) and Uber Cup (World Women’s Team Championship) – 
these are held every two years (even years) 

o Sudirman Cup (World Team Championship) – held every two years (odd years) 
o BWF World Senior Championships (hosted every second year – odd years) 
o BWF World Junior Championships (hosted every year) 

  
In early September, after an exhaustive application and evaluation process, the BWF announced that it had 
appointed IMG Media, a division of IMG Worldwide the largest global sports, entertainment and media company, 
to handle all media rights for BWF Major Events in all territories, across all five continents. 
 
The agreement, which includes the BWF World Championships, is for a three-year period, beginning in 2011. 
  
Besides the World Championships, IMG Media will also market major BWF events such as the Thomas Cup , Uber 
Cup , the Sudirman Cup , World Junior Championships and World Senior Championships.  
   
The YONEX BWF World Championships 2011 will be hosted at the Wembley Arena in London, in August 2011 
while the Sudirman Cup will be played in Qingdao, China – and these two events will be the first major 
commercial events for this new relationship between IMG Media and the BWF.  
 
 
MEDIA CONTRACTS – BWF Major Events 2010 

The media contracts for BWF Major Events 2010 were contracted to Total Sports Asia for the Asian media rights 
and with IEC in Sport for media rights outside Asia – this was a one year extension of the arrangement for these 
two organisation who had had a three year commercial relationship with the BWF. The extension saw 
significance increases in the income for media rights for the Major Events for 2010. 
 
Both Total Sports Asia and IEC in Sports have over many years been loyal partners to the BWF and quite a 
number of our Member Associations who organise major events. 
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MAJOR EVENTS – COMMERCIAL RIGHTS 

At its December meeting, the Council approved an agreement with Enterprise Sports Group (ESG) to acquire the 
marketing rights for all BWF major events for the next five years. In making the recommendation, the Marketing 
Committee emphasized a few key reasons that were attractive to the BWF in that it: 
 

o secures the financial standing of the BWF with guaranteed income over the next five years 
 

o defines standards for more centralized rights and better control over consistency of delivery and overall 
coherence. 

 
o gives more flexibility to the BWF in the assessments of bids in the future. 

 
The Council agreed with the recommendation of the Marketing Committee and requested that the agreement be 
finalised.  
 
This final commercial events contract for 2010 now locks in place all of the commercial and media arrangements 
for the BWF Major Events for the next three years which is a significant step forward in underpinning the 
financial future of the BWF. 
 
 
BWF SIGNATURE TUNE  

At the AGM 2010 PBSI proposed that BWF should develop a BWF Hymn, and this proposal was referred to 
Council to make further investigations. Following this discussion at the AGM the BWF received an offer from a 
professional composer who develops music for corporate events to create a BWF signature tune, anthem or 
hymn. In November 2010, a piece of music especially composed for the BWF was submitted – and this was 
presented in a variety of formats – classical and well as more contemporary up-beat versions including a rap 
version. The Council endorsed a recommendation to trial the BWF’s music signature  at Superseries and selected 
events in order to get feedback from the public and internal stakeholders to see whether this could be more 
formally packaged into all BWF events as its signature tune or anthem. The Council will consider in May 2011 
whether to formally adopt the anthem as its own. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION POLICY 

After the Octagon report was tabled to Council in late 2009, the Council tasked a working group lead by Etienne 
Thobois to define a process to strengthen BWF’s communication policy and practices which is crucial for future 
BWF branding efforts. Meetings were held in the first half of 2010 and the strategic planning workshops held in KL  
 
Further work is required to define the communications policies for the BWF and to ensure that effective 
communication is paramount in all areas of the BWF’s work. 
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EVENTS 
 
OVERVIEW 

Two well presented ‘showpieces’, the Proton BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals in Kuala Lumpur and the YONEX 
BWF World Championships in Paris were the highlights of 2010, a year when real progress was made in the 
presentation of the sport.  
 
The Proton BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals was the first BWF Major Event to be filmed in HD and for the first 
time, both the Thomas & Uber Cup Finals and BWF World Championships, were televised from the first match to a 
worldwide television audience.   
 
Both events were well presented and used arena screens and pre finals entertainment to enhance the 
entertainment package for the fans. More than 12,000 passionate fans packed out the Putra Stadium on the Friday 
of the Thomas & Uber Cup eagerly awaiting the big match of the week– China v Malaysia in the Thomas Cup - a 
truly memorable sight. 
 
The BWF Super Series was also effectively delivered by the 
11 constituent nations, and Chinese Taipei, who hosted the 
Victor BWF Super Series Finals 2010 in the New Year of 2011.  
The 2010 Series included a new title sponsor, Enopi, who 
took over the title sponsorship from the Singapore event in 
June through to the final Super Series of the year in Hong 
Kong. 
 
During the year, the bidding to be part of the new cycle of the 
‘Superseries’ for 2011-2013 took place and this complex 
process was conducted alongside the process to appoint the 
Commercial and the Media rights agencies for the Series.   
 
Key to the re-launch of the Series was the introduction of five Premier tournaments and those chosen were 
Korea, All England, Indonesia, Denmark and China.  The hard work paid off as a new title sponsor was secured 
for 2011-2013, a market leader in healthy lifestyle products - OSIM.  Well known throughout Asia but with a 
growing wider international profile, OSIM saw the Superseries as the perfect communication platform to drive 
their business forward.   
 

In addition TSA successfully acquired the Media rights and 
for the first time all constituent member nations will share 
their media rights to drive more and better television 
coverage for the sport.  BWF are starting to realise the 
strategic aims outlined in 2009 to use more and better 
television coverage of the sport to grow the badminton ‘fan 
base’.   
 
Another immediate benefit of the bidding process for the 
new Superseries cycle was a doubling of prize money 
across the Series to nearly  US$4.5 Million including the first 
million dollar badminton tournament with the US$1.2 Million 

Victor Korea Open.  It should be noted that the Victor Korea Open 2011 was statistically the strongest ever BWF 
tournament with regards World ranking players taking part, and this is already starting to justify both the 
investment in prize money and the new BWF Player Commitment Regulations. 
 



 34 BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

Another important event for the future of badminton events took place well away from the sight of any spectators 
with a very well run and valuable Referee’s course in Kuala Lumpur in June.  This involved three days with 
sessions for Referee Assessors, Certificated Referees and Candidates vying to become Accredited Referee’s 
who also undertook the first written examination. Success in this allows the candidates to progress to a practical 
assessment as Referee’s in charge of a level 3 or 4 tournament. 
 
A large body of work was completed with regards to several changes to General and specific Competition 
Regulations, both at the BWF Council meeting in May in Kuala Lumpur and again at the meeting in Langkawi in 
December.  Some of the changes resulted from the introduction of a new on line entry system for Level 2 and 3 
events and this will soon progress through to Level 4 tournaments.   
 
Embracing the benefits of new technology, but making sure such systems are also robust enough to cope with a 
wide variety of users from across the Membership, is clearly key to the delivery of better organised and more 
efficient tournaments. 
 
 
LAWS OF BADMINTON / COMPETITION REGULATIONS 

The May and December BWF Council meetings developed a wide range of proposals and regulation changes 
including progress on: 
 

o Laws of Badminton 9.1.5 
 
An encouraging experiment was conducted during the World Championships in Paris with a fixed height 
line below which the server has to make contact with the shuttle with further trials to be conducted. 
 

o New World Nations Rankings 
 

o A new World Junior Calendar and Ranking system 
 

o General Competition Regulations  - several amendments including changes to make the withdrawal fees 
process clearer, to make the Continental Confederations role with Level 4 tournaments clearer, and 
introducing host organisers wild cards in Level 3 tournaments. 

 
o Sanctioning Policy - new amendments to reflect the upcoming Olympic qualifying period 

 
o World Ranking System - new amendments including introduction of Superseries Premier tournaments 

and points for Superseries Finals. 
 
 
THOMAS & UBER CUP FINALS –  

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia - 9-16 May 2010 

Badminton Association of Malaysia organised 
the Proton-BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 
2010 as a colourful and vivid showcase of 
badminton with large numbers of dedicated 
badminton fans from across South East Asia in 
the Arena and a worldwide television 
audience.  
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Effective improvements and innovations included: 
 

o Two Arena Screens 
o Speed Gun 
o New TV graphics – including head to head and 

speed gun ‘top ten’s’ 
o Live draw after group stages 
o Pre-Finals entertainment 
o Filmed and available to broadcasters  - 16:9 HD 

ready 
 
The few problems that occurred such as the late arrival of the Nigeria team were dealt with effectively during the 
tournament. 
 
Final rankings 

 
Thomas Cup Champion Runner up 3rd placing 5 – 8 placing

 China Indonesia Japan
Malaysia 

Korea 
Denmark 
Germany 

India 
 
 

Uber Cup Champion Runner up 3rd placing 5 – 8 placing
 Korea China Indonesia

Japan 
Malaysia 

India 
Denmark 

Russia 
 
BWF would like to thank Badminton Association of Malaysia for delivering a truly World Class event which was a 
credit to them, BWF and the Sport.   The bidding process for the next Thomas & Uber Cup Finals to be held in 2012 
is now underway. 
 
 
YONEX BWF WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS   

Paris, France - 23-29 August 2010 

The Yonex BWF World Badminton Championships in Paris 
looked fantastic and was an excellent event, successfully 
fulfilling BWF’s objectives to showcase and promote 
badminton to a worldwide television audience and 
through good local development initiatives.     
Good improvements and innovations included: 
 

o Use of arena screen, in particular a rolling three minute daily ‘highlights’.  
o Improved graphics package and ‘stats’ for TV coverage 
o Good use of pre Finals entertainment 
o Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 
o Strong use of event concept to create unique look and feel identity, much praised by people who 

attended. 
o Smooth presentation of matches onto court integrated with television production 
o First ever BWF iPhone App produced. 

 
Very few problems occurred though the main two, the heat and the poor Wi Fi service were never really resolved.   
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BWF would like to thank FFBA for delivering a truly world class event which was a credit to them, BWF and the 
sport.  
 
Results 

Events Gold Silver Bronze 

Men’s 
Singles  

Chen Jin  (CHN) Taufik Hidayat (INA)
 

Park Sung Hwan (KOR) 
Peter Hoeg  Gade (DEN) 

Women’s 
Singles  

Wang Lin (CHN) Wang Xin (CHN)
 

Tine Baun (DEN) 
Wang Shixian (CHN) 

Men’s 
Doubles 

Cai Yun/Fu Haifeng (CHN) 
 

Koo Kien Keat/
Tan Boon Heong (MAS) 

Gou Zhendong/Xu Chen (CHN)
Markis Kido/ 
Hendra Setiawan (INA) 

Women’s 
Doubles  

Du Jing/Yu Yang (CHN) Ma Jin/Wang Xiaoli (CHN) Cheng Shu/Zhao Yunlei (CHN)
Cheng Wen Hsing/ 
Chien Yu Chin (TPE) 

Mixed 
Doubles 

Zheng Bo /Ma Jin (CHN) 
 

He Hanbin/ Yu Yang (CHN)
 

Ko Sung Hyun/ 
Ha Jung Eun(KOR) 
Lee Sheng Mu/ 
Chien Yu Chin (TPE) 

 
 
WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS  

Guadalajara, Mexico - 16-25 April 2010 

The World Junior Championships for the Suhandinata (team) and Bimantara (individual) Cups 2010 also doubled 
as the test event for the Pan Am Games 2011 and took place in Guadalajara, Mexico.   
 
Hosted for only the second time in Pan America, it was organised jointly by the Mexican Badminton Association 
and COPAG (the organizing committee for Pan Am 2011 Games).  A total of 24 teams took part in the team event 
and originally 40 countries were to be represented in the individual event but the closure of European airspace 
due to the Icelandic Volcano eruption, meant the Czech Republic and Ukraine could not travel and take part. 
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The venue was well set up for the Championships with six playing courts and two warm up courts and the 
organisers also put in court specific lighting for the event after concerns had been raised about the lighting in the 
same venue after the Pan Am Badminton Championships in 2009.  Problems with the training hall, transport, and 
quality of meals were all addressed and rectified.  Despite fears pre-event there were no safety or health issues 
during the Championships.   
 
The organisers staged a very good carnival like welcome ceremony and this was enjoyed by a good turn out from 
the teams who nearly all sent representatives and / or players.  A strong cultural programme which was 
supported by a BWF grant was a credit to the event with five to six activities very well received by the teams.   
 

Countries from the Pan Am region responded 
well to the event being staged in their region 
with 11 countries taking part, a big increase on 
their participation in 2009 in Malaysia. 
 
The Championships was very competitive and 
enjoyed winners from Denmark in Men’s 
Singles, Thailand in Women’s singles, 
Malaysia in Men’s doubles, and China in 
Women’s and Mixed doubles.  The Individual 
Championships was also a key qualifying 
event for the first Summer Youth Olympic 
Games in Singapore. 
 

 
Team Ranking 

1. China 
2. Korea 
3. Malaysia  
4. Indonesia 
5. Japan 
6. Denmark 
7. Chinese Taipei 
8. Thailand 
9. India  
10. England 

11. Hong Kong
12. Germany 
13. France  
14. Netherlands 
15. Singapore 
16. Canada 
17. Turkey 
18. Peru 
19. Austria  
20. USA 

21. Mexico  
22. Puerto Rico  
23. South Africa 
24. Dominican Republic 
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Individual Medal Winners 

Guadalajara   2010 
LIST OF MEDAL WINNERS 
   

Men’s singles 
 

Women’s singles 

 
Gold 

 
Viktor Axelsen (DEN) Ratchanok Intanon (THA) 

 
Silver Kang Ji Wook (KOR) Misaki Matsutomo (JPN) 
 
Bronze 

 
Sai Praneet B (IND) Di Sou(CHN) 

 H.S Prannoy (IND) Naoko Fukuman (JPN) 
  
 

Men’s doubles Women’s doubles 
 

 
Gold 

 
Yew Hong Kheng/Ow Yao Han (MAS) Bao Yixin/Ou Dongni (CHN) 

 
Silver 

 
Nelson Heg Wei Keat/Teo Ee Yi(MAS) Tang Jinhua/Xia Huan (CHN) 

 
Bronze 

 
Kim Astrup/ Rasmus Fladberg (DEN) 
Lee Chun Hei /Ng Kar Long(HKG) 

Choi In Hye/Lee So Hee (KOR) 
Sandra Maria Jensen / Line Kjaersfeldt (DEN) 

  
  

Mixed doubles 
 

 

 
Gold 

 
Liu Cheng/Bao Yixin (CHN) 
 

 

Silver Kang Ji Wook/Choi Hye In (KOR)
  

Bronze Ow Yao Han /Lai Pei Jing (MAS)  
 Max Schwenger/Isabel Herttrich (GER)

  

 
BWF extends a special thanks to Mexico Badminton Association and COPAG for successfully staging a 
wonderful experience for the young competitors and a good competition despite the fears of some teams and the 
problems caused by the Icelandic Volcano eruption.  
 
 
BWF SUPER SERIES 2010 

The 2010 Super Series marked the final year of the opening phase of the Series since its inception in 2007.  
Generally recognised as having contributed greatly to promoting the sport to a larger and wider audience it also 
enjoyed a new title Sponsor for the last eight events starting in Singapore in the education sector specialists 
Enopi.   
 
The Victor BWF World Super Series Finals in Chinese Taipei were held 5-9 January 2011 due to fixture congestion 
in December but was a fitting end to the 2010 Season. 
 
With a combined total prize fund of US$2,650,000 which once again included prize money of US$250,000 for the 
China Open, China Masters and Indonesian Open and US$300,000, the richest prize pool for the Victor Korean 
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Open, the Series offered strong entries with many players from the World top 20 rankings for each tournament and 
over 1600 hours of television broadcast. 
 
The 12-leg Super Series for 2010 were: 
 

1. Victor Korea Open Super Series     12-17 January 
2. Proton Malaysia Open Super Series   19-24 January 2010 
3. YONEX All England Open Super Series  9-14 March 
4. Wilson Swiss Open Super Series    16-21 March 
5. LI NING Singapore Open Super Series  15-20 June  
6. Djarum Indonesia Open Super Series  22-27 June  
7. LI NING China Masters Super Series  14-19 September  
8. YONEX Japan Open Super Series   21-26 September 
9. Denmark Open Super Series   26-31 October  
10. YONEX French Open Super Series   2-7 November 
11.  LI NING China Open Super Series   30 November – 5 December 
12. YONEX-SUNRISE Hong Kong Open   6-12 December 

 
 
VICTOR BWF WORLD SUPER SERIES FINALS 

 
Taipei, Chinese Taipei – 5 – 9 January 2011 

Once again the richest prize pool in badminton for the 2010 season, even if the event was being held in 2011, was 
the Super Series Finals.   The event took place with the support of Victor as title sponsors and hosts Chinese 
Taipei Badminton Association – 5-9 January 2011.   
 
The Finals enjoyed their strongest entry to date 
with all the qualifying players taking part except 
one (due to injury).  This was partly encouraged 
by the new regulations which came into force in 
January introducing World Ranking points for the 
event and also penalties for failing to take part.  
Altogether 14 countries took either live coverage, 
highlights, or web streaming footage of the 
Championships. 
 
The BWF wishes to acknowledge and thank the 
following key partners in the staging of the Finals: 
 

o Victor Sports 
o Chinese Taipei Badminton Association 
o BWF Sub sponsor Acer  
o IEC in Sports, the exclusive international broadcaster. 

 
The title winners were as follows: 
 

o Men’s Singles:   Lee Chong Wei (MAS) 
o Women’s Singles:  Wang Shixiang(CHN) 
o Men’s Doubles:   Carsten Morgensen/Boe Mattias(DEN) 
o Women’s Doubles:  Wang Xiaoli/ Yu Yang (CHN) 
o Mixed Doubles:   Zhang Nang /Zhao Yunlei (CHN) 
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GRAND PRIX EVENTS 

As in 2009 15 Grand Prix events, both Grand Prix Gold and Grand Prix took place in 2010 showing the depth of the 
Sport and providing an important part of the International Competition pathway.  This would have been a new 
record of 17 had the New Zealand and Thailand Opens taken place, both of which can be expected to return in 
2011. 
 
In addition to the growing trend in the number of Grand Prix events, the prize money increased amongst the 
established tournaments providing players with the opportunity to win a total of US$1,350,000 in prize money.  
 
 
MULTI SPORT GAMES 

 
YOUTH OLYMPIC GAMES 

Singapore - 15-19 August 2010 

The first Summer Youth Olympic Games (YOG) were held in Singapore and included the badminton competition 
from 15-19 August.   
 

The Games delivered a very memorable 
experience for young athletes between the ages 
of 14 – 18 years old from all over the World 
including 32 players in each of Boys and Girls 
Singles in the badminton competition for athletes 
born in 1992 and 1993 (17 or 18 years old).   
 
The Games included a cultural and educational 
programme alongside the competition in which 
badminton played its full part with Xu Huaiwen and 
Poul Erik Hoyer Larsen acting as Ambassadors. 
 
 

The badminton competition was organised in a traditional 
way when compared to some sports which were more 
innovative in their competition formats but it was efficiently 
organized and presented, including a competent television 
production from CCTV.     
 
The IOC are encouraging International Federations to be 
innovative with their competition formats for future YOGs 
and the challenge for badminton will be to combine 
innovation while also creating a credible and meaningful 
competition for young players that integrates with their 
regular competition programme. 
 
BWF would also like more flexibility with the age categories at future Games as remarkably both Boys and Girls 
World Junior Champions were too young to play in the YOG in Singapore and now will not have that opportunity 
again.  BWF would also of course like to include doubles events.  
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Singapore Youth Olympic Games    2010 
LIST OF MEDAL WINNERS 
  Men’s singles Women’s singles
Gold Pisit Poodchalat (THA) Sapsiree Taerrattanachai (THA) 

 
Silver H.S Prannoy (IND) Deng Xu (CHN)
 
Bronze 

 
Kang Ji Wook (KOR) Vu Thi Trang (VIE) 

 
 
COMMONWEALTH GAMES  

Delhi, India - 4-14 October 2010 

The Commonwealth Games was a spectacular event which also unfortunately never shook off its various 
organisational and infrastructure problems.  However the badminton competition had few such problems and 
was well presented  and competently organised in a very good new venue, the Fort Siri Complex.   
 

   

Badminton enjoyed very healthy spectator numbers and the spectators were rewarded with two gold medals for 
India players.  The only unresolved problem was a poor venue IT results service which meant it was very difficult 
for badminton fans to follow the event on the Games website.  However this was a problem across the whole 
Games and not a specifically badminton competition problem. 
 
 
ASIAN GAMES  

Guangzhou, China - 13-21 November 2010 

A stunning event, almost approaching the Beijing 2008 Olympic Games with its opening ceremony in particular 
being considered by some equal to that held in Beijing.  The badminton venue was excellent and its green livery 
gave a clear and distinctive look and feel.   
 
10 teams took part in both the Men’s and Women’s team competitions and over 150 players in the Individual 
events.  China topped the medal table with 5 gold medals and Korea and Indonesia also won a gold medal each. 
 
It was also acknowledged that the Badminton Asia Confederation Technical Officials gave a first class 
performance.    
 
 
OTHER EVENTS 

In addition to the growing trend in Grand Prix events the Level 4 International competition programme is also 
growing, both  in the overall total number of tournaments and in prize money.   
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In 2009, 21 International Challenge tournaments took place, 25 International Series, and 10 Future Series (56 
tournaments in total).  In 2010 the number of International Challenge tournaments improved to 28, with 23 
International Series, and 8 Future Series (59 tournaments).  The total could have been even better with 3 Level 4 
tournaments cancelled for various reasons.   
 
The increase in International Challenge events and the increase overall in number of tournaments made 
available to the players a bigger prize fund than ever before. 
 
 
TECHNICAL OFFICIALS 

Crucial to the organization and 
presentation of the sport are the dedicated 
volunteers who comprise the BWF 
technical officials.   Once again they have 
given their time to fulfill a very busy 
schedule of events around the world.   
 
Assessments of Certificated Referees were 
carried out during the Japan Super Series  
and Czech International 2010.   Ernest 
Robinson (FRA) was upgraded to BWF 
certificated status while Ivanka Pokorni 
(CRO)received accredited status. 
 
 At the World Championships held in Paris Umpire assessments for BWF Certificated Umpires were carried out 
and 4 umpires were certificated and they are as follows: Diraj Gooneardry (MRI), Erik Kirt (DEN), Klaus Schlieben 
(AUT) and Tata Mulyana (INA). 
 
 
BWF INTERNATIONAL LINE JUDGES 

A list of 47 line judges with representatives from each of the Continental Confederations (and including the 10 
ITO’s from the last Olympic Games) were selected as the first BWF International Line Judges. 
 
 
MEETING OF WORKING GROUPS 

The Events committee met twice in 2010 in Kuala Lumpur in May and Langkawi  
in December. The Events Working Group also met in Paris in August.  The  
composition of the Working Groups and Commissions are as follows: 
 
Technical Officials Commission 

o Torsten Berg, 
o Paisan Rangsikitpho 
o TO Chairman from each Continental Confederation 

 
Events Working Group 

o Paisan Ranksitkipho 
o Torsten Berg 
o Peter Tarcala  
o Girish Natu  
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Events Junior Working Group 

o Peter Tarcala (SVK) 
o Surasak Songvarakulpan (THA) 
o Jimmy Andersen (DEN) 

 
Senior Working Group 

o Paisan Rangsikitpho (USA) 
o Peter Emptage (ENG) 
o Bob Cook (USA) 
o Wu Jun Yan (TPE) 
o Loke Poh (AUS) 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The event organisers, their volunteers and technical officials are the lifeblood of the sport and without their 
dedication and expertise the many successful badminton events around the world could not take place.  The 
Events Committee and BWF Council extend their grateful thanks to them and wish them every success in future 
years. 
 
I would also like to thank the members of the Events Committee and Working Group for their hard work and 
support throughout the year and also the staff of the BWF Events Department team for their devotion to the 
cause.   
 
  
Paisan Rangsikitpho 
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Bobby Milroy 
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MEDICAL COMMISSION 
 
The Medical Commission continued to provide advice on medical matters and provide services to BWF Major 
Events in 2010. The Commission ensures that the standards of emergency and general medical support meets a 
minimum standard of emergency and general medical care. 
 
Commission members also delivered on-court duties as doctors at BWF major events – the BWF World Junior 
Championships, PROTON BWF Thomas & Uber Cups and the YONEX BWF World Championships. 
 
The Medical Commission Terms of Reference was reviewed in late 2010 and the Council approved amendments 
to this which saw the main focus of the Commission was on medical matters with an advisory role on anti-doping 
matters. 
 
Three members of the Commission continue to form the TUE Committee which assesses applications for 
Therapeutic Use Exemptions. 
 
The Commission will in 2011 look into injury documentation and prevention in the sport following research being 
conducted by other IFs and other research supported through the IOC. This area will link in the future to work 
being conducted by the Sports Science Working Group. 
 
 
ANTI-DOPING MATTERS 

The BWF has continued to be active in the area of anti-doping and it continues to be in compliance with the 
WADA Code.  
 
The size of the BWF Registered Testing Pool (RTP) was reduced from 150 to 90 following advice and a review of 
the RTP after the WADA Anti-doping Forum in April. This is more manageable administratively and allows the 
BWF to conduct intelligent testing of our top players. 
 
The criteria for the inclusion in the RTP is on the BWF website as is the list of players on the RTP. 
 
 
ANTI-DOPING PROGRAMME STATISTICS 

o TUE applications / TUEs issued - 10 
o In-competition testing at BWF Events - 78 
o In-competition testing at other events - GP and Super Series events - 114 
o Out of competition tests - 45 
o Number of missions - 10 
o Missed tests declared – 4 
o Filing Failures declared - 7 
o Anti-doping Rule Violation - 1 

 
Dato' Gurcharan Singh 

Medical Commission 

Dato' Gurcharan Singh (Malaysia) - Chair 
Dr. Martin Fahsthrom (Sweden) 
Dr. Ashwin Patel (England)  

Dr. Nisith Chowdhury (India)
Dr. Wojciech Ossowski (Poland) 
Dr. Carmen Jahja (Indonesia) 
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ATHLETES’ COMMISSION 
 
OVERVIEW 

2010 was a very important year for the BWF’s Athlete Commission (AC).The Badminton Players Federation had its 
election to introduce three new members into the AC. The election was done at two tournaments so more players 
would have the chance to vote for their candidates. The tournaments were, the 2010 Danish Open (BWF Super 
Series) and the 2010 Dutch Grand Prix.  
 
The three new elected members were:  

o Emma Mason (Scotland) 
o Rodrigo Pacheco (Peru) 
o Lee Yong Dae (Korea) 

 
These three new members replaced three of the previous members of Athlete Commission, who did a very good 
job and who had served at the Athletes’ Commission and BPF for many years.  
 
The three previous members were: 

o Bobby Milroy (Canada) (Chair) 
o Xu Huaiwen (Germany) 
o Pedro Yang (Guatemala). 

 
Pedro Yang however will continue to serve as the Ex-officio Member on the BWF Athletes’ Commission as long 
as he is a member of the IOC Athletes’ Commission. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission itself met twice in 2010, once at the 2010 YONEX BWF World Championships in Paris, 
following the Players Federation AGM. The second time was in December in Istanbul, Turkey. The reports and 
minutes from both meetings have been sent to the BWF. 
 
At the meeting in Istanbul, Kaveh Mehrabi was elected as the new Chairperson for the Athlete Commission 
replacing Bobby Milroy on the BWF Council. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission Chair (at the time, Bobby Milroy) participated with a vote in the Council meeting in 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia in May 2010 and contributed to the development and approval of the BWF activities 
throughout the year.  
 
 
GENERAL ACTIVITIES 

The Athletes’ Commission was continually open to discussion and inquiries from players from around the world, 
who contacted and discussed issues with AC members at tournaments, via email or on the phone. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission representatives must constantly answer and justify questions to other athletes 
regarding the direction of badminton and decisions made by the BWF Council that affect athletes in particular. 
 
There has been a significant increase in inquiries since the elections and establishment of the AC in late 2008.  
 
The athletes of badminton understand more and more that they have a voice in the process and do wish to be 
heard. While their process of communication must become more organized and streamlined, the communication 
and credibility of the governing body has increased. 
 
The Chair (both the previous and current) have done their utmost to communicate the most commonly related 
issues to the Council as well as communicate those subjects officially debated and passed at the AC meetings 
and the Players’ AGM during the YONEX BWF World Championship in Paris. 
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It is felt that the Council has been generally fair in their respect of the voice of athletes however, we believe there 
is still room for the relationship and the trust to grow in the coming years. 
 
 
PLAYERS FEDERATION MEETING 

The 2010 Badminton Players Federation AGM was held in Paris during the YONEX BWF World Championship 
2010. 
 
BWF COO Thomas Lund and BWF Deputy President Paisan Rangsikitpho were both present at the AGM. In the 
follow up of the conversation from the 2009 AGM, Thomas Lund and Paisan Rangsikitpho had made several 
suggestions to improve the Players’ AGM. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission agreed to organize the players’ AGM every year during the BWF World Championship 
and at the Olympic Games in an Olympic year. This decision was made to give the chance to more players from 
different countries to participate and share their opinions with the other athletes at the AGM. 
 
During the 2010 AGM, the Athletes’ Commission informed the players about its goals and views for the coming 
years considering the 2012 Olympic Games. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission received some feedback and comments from top international players regarding the 
sponsorship issues between some national federations and their top players. 
 
 
2011 AND BEYOND 

The Athletes’ Commission sees 2011 as a very crucial year for all the players due to the Olympic qualification 
year. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission has decided to put an extra effort in and be more creative to inform the players around 
the world about the Athletes’ Commission AGM, its goals and responsibilities. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission needs to become even more structured and professional in its approach to 
communication between the athletes and the BWF. 
 
It will be the responsibility of the BWF and the Athletes’ Commission members to foster this relationship long into 
the future so that a healthy system develops and continues to serve the sport. 
 
The Athletes’ Commission would also like to join forces with the Development Committee in its various projects 
and cooperation with Peace and Sport the Monaco based NGO with which the BWF has signed an MOU to 
cooperate in a number of projects for using badminton as a tool for peace and rehabilitation of vulnerable youth. 
 
In closing, I wish to acknowledge and thank Commission Members for their efforts in representing players in the 
debate about issues that affect players in our sport. We look forward to focused effort in 2011. 
 
Kaveh Mehrabi 

BWF Athletes’ Commission 

Kaveh Mehrabi (Chair) (Iran) 
Tania Luiz (Vice-Chair) (Australia) 
Emma Mason (Scotland)  

Rodrigo Pacheco (Peru)
Lee Yong Dae (South Korea) 
Pedro Yang (Guatemala) (Ex-officio member) 
 



 
49 BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

MEMBER ASSOCIATIONS 
 
 
MEMBER ASSOCIATIONS (173) 

AFRICA - ( 36 ) 

Algeria, Botswana, Burundi, Cameroon, Central African Republic, Congo, Congo Kinshasa, Egypt, Equatorial New 
Guinea, Eritrea, Ethiopia, Ghana, Ivory Coast, Kenya, Lesotho, Madagascar, Malawi, Mauritanian, Mauritius, 
Morocco, Mozambique, Namibia, Nigeria, Saint Helena, Seychelles Island, Sierra Leone, Somalia, South Africa, 
Sudan,  Swaziland, Tanzania, Togo, Tunisia, Uganda, Zambia, Zimbabwe. 

 

ASIA - ( 42 ) 

Afghanistan, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Bhutan, Brunei, Cambodia, China, Chinese Taipei, DPR Korea, East Timor, 
Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Japan, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Korea, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan, Laos, Lebanon, 
Macau, Malaysia, Maldives, Mongolia, Myanmar, Nepal, Pakistan, Palestine,  Philippines, Singapore, Sri Lanka, 
Syria, Thailand, Turkmenistan, Uzbekistan, Vietnam. 

Associate Member 

Qatar, Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates. 

 

EUROPE - ( 51 ) 

Albania, Armenia, Austria, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Belgium, Bosnia & Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech 
Republic, Denmark, England, Estonia, Faeroe Island, Finland, France, Georgia, Germany, Gibraltar, Greece, 
Greenland, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Latvia, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macedonia, 
Malta, Moldova, Montenegro, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Russia, Scotland, Serbia, 
Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey, Ukraine, Wales. 

 

OCEANIA - ( 13 ) 

Australia, Cook Island, Fiji, Kiribati, Nauru, New Zealand, Norfolk Island, Samoa, Tahiti, Tonga,  Tuvalu. 

Associate Members 

Solomon Islands, Northern Marianas 

 

PANAMERICA - ( 31 ) 

Argentina, Aruba, Barbados, Bermuda, Brazil, Canada, Cayman Islands, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, 
Curacao, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Falkland Islands, Grenada, Guatemala, Guyana, Honduras, 
Jamaica, Mexico, Panama, Peru, Puerto Rico, St. Lucia, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, USA, Uruguay, Venezuela 
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FINANCE REPORT 
 
2010 was the second year in our four year Olympic cycle and overall there was a very good financial result for the 
year. 
 
Overall, the actual performance for the year compared favourably against our budget. The BWF in its 2010 budget 
expected a loss of US$2.47 million however the final result was a loss of US$1.180 million. 
 
The differences between budget and actual was largely due to the following: 
 

o Budget figures were estimated higher compared to activities undertaken in the year; 
 

o Some activities were not fully implemented in 2010, but are underway in 2011; 
 

o Prudent spending. 
 
This leaves a reserve of US$6.303 million which is a very good position for the BWF to be in at this stage of the 
four year Olympic cycle. 
 
 
INCOME 

The performance and profitability of the BWF Major Events in 2010 was very good. The overall result of the Victor 
BWF Super Series Finals 2010 hosted by Chinese Taipei (held in January 2011 and therefore included in 2011 
accounts) was also significant and created a profitable result for the BWF. 
 
The agreement secured in 2009 between the BWF and an agency who secured the commercial rights for the 
Super Series was dissolved in early 2010, which left BWF with a challenge to find new partners for 2010 Super 
Series.  For the first four Super Series in 2010 it was not possible to secure a new partner, but for the following 
eight events however, a major sponsor, Enopi, stepped in to support the series in return for A-Board presence, 
which secured part of the budgeted revenue for the 2010 Super Series.  
 

Some of the deficit on the BWF Super Series 2010 tournaments is however covered by a profitable Victor BWF 
Super Series Finals, which is included in the 2011 accounts, but overall the BWF Super Series for 2010 will show a 
small deficit.  
 

The BWF in 2010 made an agreement with an agency, Singapore based Enterprise Sports Group (ESG) for the 
commercial rights for the BWF Super Series 2011 – 2013 and ESG secured a title sponsor, OSIM, for the BWF 
Super Series 2011 – 2013 season. This is a significant step and will show financial stability for the Series. 
 
 

EXPENDITURE 

The overall result was very good with prudent spending in most areas. BWF invested in a number of key areas 
with a view to continued upgrading of the quality of our Major Events and a better commercialisation of these. 
External contracting for the branding of the new BWF Super Series 2010 was undertaken, however much of the 
activation activity of the new branding of the BWF Super Series 2010 was scaled back and done in-house. Some 
of the activities were deferred to 2011 and will be finalized in the next financial year.  
 
The financial return on these areas is clearly demonstrated in the new BWF Superseries 2011 – 2013. The new 
commercial model together with the new title sponsor, other sponsorships per event and enhanced media rights 
partnership with Total Sports Asia, the financial underpinnings of the BWF Superseries is secure. 
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DEVELOPMENT 

The BWF has budgeted an increase in development funding for each Continental Confederation through the 
Continental Confederation Development Grants programme.  Total funding for the grants programme has 
increased from US$1.024 million to US$1.195 million (these figures are inclusive of the “contestable funds” of 
US$100K – a project based pool of money which can be accessed through applications for funding).  
 
Major projects such as the BWF School Badminton project and Coaching Development project were the major 
focus for the Development Department for year 2010 and these will continue through 2011. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 

Prudent spending and a significantly better position regarding our commercial arrangements for events has 
placed the BWF in a very good financial position as we move into the new financial year. Our income from 
commercial activities is getting closer to being equal to the income generated from the Olympic Games, and that 
is a significant achievement. 
 
We are now in a position to build a reasonable reserve by the end of 2012, an important safety net for the future 
for the BWF.  
 
Dato’ Lim Teong Kiat 

Finance Committee 

Dato’ Lim Teong Kiat (Chair)
Mehdi Karbasian(Deputy Chair) 
David Cabello 
Raj Gaya 

Sergey Shakhray
Wayne Somers 
Peter Tarcala 
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BUDGET PROPOSAL 
 

 Income Accounts 
 in  US$'000 

 Actual 
2010 
31.12.10  

 Budget 
2010 Exco 
0310  

Revised 
Budget 
2010 
Council 
0510  

 Budget 
2011 
Council 
1210  

 Forecast 
2012 
Council 
1210  

OLYMPIC           
OLYMPIC INCOME   -       -      -       -    7,980 
Olympic Solidarity Courses     2         
Olympic Solidarity Scholarship     4         
IF Development Fund  90    50   50      50        50 
OLYMPIC INCOME & OLYMPIC DEVELOPMENT 
GRANT TOTAL 96   50  50     50  8,030 
            
EVENTS           
BWF Tournaments & Super Series 2,653 3,652 3,712  6,950    6,050 
            
Open Badminton Events           
Sanction Fees   405  371 371    536      536 
Withdrawal Fees  23      5     5        5          5 
Events Cancellation Fees   (3)     -      -       
Disciplinary Committee Ruling Fines    1     -         
Prize Money Retained    5     -         
Open Badminton Events ( total )  431 376   376  541    541 
            
EVENTS INCOME TOTAL 3,084 4,028 4,088  7,491    6,591 

            
ADMINISTRATION           
Membership Subscriptions   183  182 182    182      182 
Office Relocation Grant   157  135 135    135      135 
            
ADMINISTRATION INCOME TOTAL  340 317   317  317    317 
            
MARKETING           
Other income  45    50   50      50        50 
            
MARKETING INCOME TOTAL 45   50  50     50       50 
            
FINANCE           
Bank Interests Receivable    2      5     5        5          5 
Interest on investments & dividend    7    50   50      10        10 
Late payment interest  23         
            
FINANCE INCOME TOTAL 32   55  55     15       15 
            
TOTAL INCOME 3,597 4,500 4,560  7,923  15,003 
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BUDGET PROPOSAL 
 

EXPENDITURE Accounts 
in US$'000 

Actual 
2010 
31.12.10 

Budget 
2010 Exco 
0310 

Revised 
Budget 
2010 
Council 
0510 

Budget 
2011 
Council 
1210 

Forecast 
2012 
Council 
1210 

OLYMPIC  -     400 
      
EVENTS     
BWF tournaments & Super Series 1,485 - 2,126   4,276  4,360 
Open badminton events supports  90 2,467 367  431  401 
Anti-doping programs  47  67 67  77  77 
      
EVENTS TOTAL 1,622 2,534 2,560  4,784  4,838 
      
DEVELOPMENT     
Continental Development Grants     
Badminton Confederation of Africa 194 194  194  215  215 
Badminton Asia Confederation 278 278  278  281  281 
Badminton Europe 278 278  278  309  309 
Oceania Badminton Confederation  74 74 74    85  85 
Badminton Pan American Confederation 200 200  200  205  205 
Contestable Funds - Project Funding by Application - - -  100  100 
Returns of subscriptiion to Continental Confederation  160  164 164  164  164 
TUC Preliminary Grant 230 230  230    230 
Equipment Donation  50  50 50   -  -
Continental Confederation Grants ( total) 1,464 1,468 1,468  1,359  1,589 
      
Continental Confederation Workshops 28 40 30   31   35 
      
Training Centres 81 60 60   20   20 
      
Coaching Development     
Coaches Education  29 160  160   184   234 
Itinerant Coaches 6  25 25    
Olympic Solidarity Course 7    2  2 
Coaching Development (total) 42  185 185  186  236 
      
Other Development Activities     
  Schools Badminton Projects  27 150  150  132  70 
  Towards Rio 2016 - Brazil/Central/South America     36  40 
  Towards 2020 and Beyond - Africa     35  40 
  Towards Volos 2013 - Mediterraean     15  20 
  University Badminton    5  8 
  Road Show / Membership Toolkit  14  20 20    
  Reseach Projects - Sports Science   30 30    46  46 
  Peace and Sport Projects     27  30 
  WJC - Education and Cultural Program 9  10 10    10  10 
  Assessment tool status development 4 10    
  Global sport structure for development  70 70    
Other Development Activities (total) 54  280 290  306  264 
  
 
 

    



 54 BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

EXPENDITURE Accounts 
in US$'000 

Actual 
2010 
31.12.10 

Budget 
2010 Exco 
0310 

Revised 
Budget 
2010 
Council 
0510 

Budget 
2011 
Council 
1210 

Forecast 
2012 
Council 
1210 

Development Projects Under IOC and International 
Relations 

    

Para-badminton / IBAD  23  15 20  86  80
Women in Sports  14  31 31  38  38 
UN/UNICEF ( refugee project included ) 5 5   5  5 
Multi Sports 8 8   8  8 
Development Projects Under IOC and International 
Relations (total) 

37 59  64    137  131 

      
Other Developemnt Activities ( grand total) 91 339 354    443  395 
      
DEVELOPMENT TOTAL 1,706 2,092 2,097  2,039  2,275 
      
ADMINISTRATION      
BWF Player of the Year Gala Awards Night     56  56 
Awards  20  17 17    10  10 
BWF 75th Anniversary Celebration 1     
Resource Centre    3  3 
Statute Book ( Postage included )  10  20 20    20  22 
      
ADMINISTRATION TOTAL 31 37 37    89  91 
      
MARKETING     
Marketing publications 5 20 20    30  33 
Events Marketing Implementation  85 300  300  200  
      
MARKETING TOTAL 90  320 320  230  33 
      
GOVERNANCE     
Annual General Meeting 14 25 25   50   50 
BWF Forum ("Congress")    42   12 
      
Council and Committees Meetings     -
Council Meetings 168 211  228  258  258 
Executive Board Meetings  67  78 78    71  71 
President and Deputy President  12  40 40  40  40 
Administration Committee  18  10 10    20  10 
Disciplinary / Appeal / Doping Hearing Panels 6 6   8  8 
Development Committee  36  20 20    20  20 
Events Committee   42  87 87  91  91 
Marketing Committee 5  15 15  15  15 

IOC and International Relations Committee  18  30 30  30  30 
Finance Committee 1  11 11  11  11 
BWF Athlets Commission  14  20 20  20  20 
      
Council and Committee Meetings (total)  381  528 545  584  574 
      
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION     
      
Staff Cost 625 809  809  915  979 
Staff travel & other staff cost including recruitment cost  39  69 72    68  75 
Office general administrative expenses  32  57 57    51  56 
Other office, property and utilities cost  17  60 60  169  176 
Computer consumables and network maintenance  15  16 16    18  19 
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EXPENDITURE Accounts 
in US$'000 

Actual 
2010 
31.12.10 

Budget 
2010 Exco 
0310 

Revised 
Budget 
2010 
Council 
0510 

Budget 
2011 
Council 
1210 

Forecast 
2012 
Council 
1210 

Web project costs  50 143  151   121   132 
Media publication     2  2 
General Administration (total)  778 1,154 1,165  1,344  1,439 
      
GOVERNANCE TOTAL 1,173 1,707 1,735  2,020  2,075 
      
PROFESSIONAL AND OTHERS     
Insurance 117 120  120  132  145 
Legal Fees  11  30 30    30  30 
Compensation -     
Other Professional 5 3 3   5  6 
Audit Fees KPMG  19  18 18    20  22 
Bad Debts Provisions / Bad Debts Write Off  25 25    25  28 
Depreciation Fixed Assets  37  50 50    50  55 
Investment Management fees 1     
Foreign exchange  (29) 15 15    20  22 
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange  (31)     
Loss on disposal of investment -quoted shares 4     
      
PROFESSIONAL AND OTHERS TOTAL  134  261 261  282  308 
      
FINANCE     
Bank Charges  21  19 19    20  22 
FINANCE TOTAL 21 19 19    20  22 
      
Taxation 3 -  2   2 
      
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,777 6,973 7,029  9,466  10,044
      
TOTAL INCOME 3,597 4,500 4,560  7,923  15,003 
PROFIT / (LOSS) (1,180) (2,473) (2,469) (1,543) 4,959
CAPITAL AS AT 1ST JANUARY 7,483 7,483 7,483  6,303  4,760 
CAPITAL ( RESERVES ) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 6,303 5,010 5,014  4,760  9,719
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of 
Badminton World Federaiton  
 (Registration No. 1983-05-5) 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the financial statements of Badminton World Federation, which comprise the Statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the Statement of comprehensive income and Statement of cash 
flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as 
set out on pages 62 to 85. 

Executive Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Executive Board of Badminton World Federation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia and the Constitution of 
the Federation, and for such internal control as the Executive Board determine are necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Federation’s preparation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Federation’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the Executive Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  
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Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Standards in Malaysia and the Constitution of the Federation so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Federation as of 31 December 2010 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended. 

 

 

KPMG          

Firm number: AF0758 

Chartered Accountants        

Petaling Jaya, 

Date: 5 March 2011 
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Statement of Executive Board responsibilities 
 

For each financial year, the Constitution of the Federation requires the financial statements which give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Federation and of the cash flows and and comprehensive income statement 
for that period to be prepared. In preparing those financial statements, the Executive Board has decided to: 

■ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; 

■ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

■ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  

■ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Federation will continue in business. 

The Executive Board has general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the 
assets of the Federation and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
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Badminton World Federation 
(Registration No. 1983-05-5) 

 

 

Statement by the Executive Board  
 

In our opinion, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position and Statement of 
Cash Flow together with the notes thereto, are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Badminton World Federation as at 31 December 2010 and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

 

     

…………………………………… 

President 

Dr Kang Young Joong  

 

 

       

…………………………………… 

Finance Committee Chair,  

Dato’ Lim Teong Kiat 
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Statement of comprehensive income  
For the year ended 31 December 2010 

  Notes 2010 2009 
  $ $ $ $ 
GROSS INCOME      
Olympic development grants 3  95,645  95,341 
BWF tournaments 4 (a)   

2,652,989 
  

3,014,350 
Open badminton events  4 (b)  431,116  428,569 
      
Subscriptions   183,200  181,600 
      
Office location support   157,070  134,125 
Other income 5  44,743  45,482 

 _________ _________ 
 TOTAL GROSS INCOME 3,564,763 3,899,467 
  ------------- ------------- 

EXPENDITURE      
 

      
      
BWF tournaments expenses   1,484,523  2,077,574 
       
Events- General       
Open badminton events support  90,621  109,560  
Anti-doping programs  47,124  47,487  

 _________  _________ 
  137,745    157,047   
 

Development      
Confederation grants 6 1,463,537  1,249,979  
Continental Confederation workshop  28,414  25,219  
Coaching development 7 42,794  19,933  
Training centres  8 80,772  60,421  
Other development activities  9 90,375  31,389  

 _________  _________ 
  1,705,892  1,386,941 
 
 

Administration      
Awards, archives and statute books  30,286  7,488  
75th anniversary expenses  577  93,574  

 _________  _________ 
  30,863  101,062 
 

Commercial and Marketing           
Marketing publications  5,253   5,818   
Marketing consultancy fee  85,070   124,745   

 _________  _________ 
  90,323  130,563 

AGM, Council and Committee Meeting          
Annual general meeting  14,217   26,291   
Council and committees 10 381,150   356,775   

 _________  _________ 
  395,367  383,066 
  __________  __________ 
 
Sub-total  3,844,713  4,236,253 
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 Notes 2010 2010 2009 2009  
    $ $ $ $ 

 
Sub-total  3,844,713  4,236,253 

 
General and Administrative Expenses 11  776,975  767,039 
      
      
Professional and Others Fees      
Insurance  116,489   115,785   
Legal and professional charges 12 16,317   17,464   
Audit fee   19,000   15,000   
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts  -   (43,750)   
Depreciation  37,283  28,688  
Investment management fees  1,378  2,078  
Currency exchange differences  (29,315)  867  
Unrealised gain in currency exchange differences   (31,452)  (4,447)   
Reversal of diminution in value of investments            -           (13,777)  
Loss on disposal of investment – quoted shares  4,255  -  

 _________  _________ 
  133,955  117,908 
 

Finance costs    21,058  21,759 
 _________ _________ 
 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,776,701 5,142,959 
  ------------- ------------- 
 

OPERATING DEFICIT    (1,211,938)   (1,243,492)
           
Interest and dividends 14 9,344   43,860   
Late payment interest  22,731   22,892    

 _________  _________ 
  32,075  66,752 
  __________  ________ 

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR     (1,179,863)   (1,176,740) 
Taxation    22    -   (3,443) 

  __________  ________ 
 TOTAL DEFICIT (1,179,863) (1,180,183) 
  ======== ======= 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         The notes on pages 66 to 85 are integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of financial position  
As at 31 December 2010    
 Note 2010 2009 
  $ $ 
Assets 
 Equipment 13 48,230 35,696 
 Investments - Quoted shares 15 - 26,447 
   ________ _________  
Total non-current assets  48,230 62,143 
   ------------- ---------- 
 
 Trade and other receivables  2,062,989 2,427,854 
 Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (750,000) (750,000) 
 
  16 1,312,989 1,677,854 
 Prepayment  267,195 52,337 
 Cash and cash equivalents 17 7,994,820 7,453,828 
   ________ _________  
Total current assets  9,575,004 9,184,019 
   ------------- -------------- 
Total assets  9,623,234 9,246,162 
    ======== ======== 
Funds 
 F S Coaching Fund 18 10,000 10,000  
 World Junior Championships Fund 19 303,271 301,491 
 President Kang Young Joong’s Fund 20 166,894 148,201 
Capital Reserves 
 At beginning of year  7,482,561 8,662,744 
 Deficit for the financial year  (1,179,863) (1,180,183) 
  
 At end of year  6,302,698 7,482,561 
   ________ _________  
   6,782,863 7,942,253 
   ------------- ------------- 
Non-current liabilities 
 Payables and accruals 21 17,051 326,671 
Current liabilities   
   Payables and accruals  21 2,823,320 977,238 
   ________ ________ 
Total liabilities  2,840,371 1,303,909 
   ------------- --------------- 
Total funds and liabilities  9,623,234 9,246,162  
    ======== ========= 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         The notes on pages 66 to 85 are integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of cash flow  
For the year ended 31 December 2010 
  2010 2009 
  $ $ 
Cash flows from operating activities 
 Deficit for the financial year (1,179,863) (1,176,740) 
 Adjustments for:  
  Depreciation of equipment 37,283 28,688 
  Equipment written off - 794   
  Investment interest and dividends (9,344) (43,860) 
  Reversal of diminution in value of investments - (13,777) 
  Reversal of for doubtful debts - (43,750) 
  Loss on disposal on investment – quoted shares 4,255 - 
   _________ _________ 
Operating loss before changes in working capital  (1,147,669) (1,248,645) 
 Receivables and prepayments 150,007 5,613,461 
 Payables and accruals 1,536,462 (308,801)
 President Kang Young Joong’s Fund 18,693 (159,716) 
 World junior championship fund 1,780 1,491    
   _________ _________ 
Cash generated from operations 559,273 3,897,790  
 Tax paid - (3,443)   
   ________ _________ 
 
Net cash generated from operating activities 559,273 3,894,347 
   ------------- -------------- 
Cash flows from investing activities 
 Addition of equipment  (49,817) (44,878)   
 Investment interest and dividends 9,344 43,860 
 Disposal of investment – quoted shares 22,192 - 
   ________ _________ 
Net cash used investing activities (18,281) (1,018)  
   ------------ ------------- 
 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  540,992 3,893,329 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January   7,453,828 3,560,499 
   ________ _________ 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (i) 7,994,820 7,453,828 
   ======= ======== 
 
(i) Cash and cash equivalents  
  
 Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts: 
 
  2010 2008 
  $ $ 

 
Cash and bank balances  5,603,294 6,603,412   
Deposits placed with financial institutions  2,391,526 850,416 
   _________ _________  
   7,994,820 7,453,828 
   ======== ======== 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         The notes on pages 66 to 85 are integral part of these financial statements.  



 

 

66 
Badminton World Federation                               
Financial Statements                                            
For the year ended 31 December 2010 

Notes to the financial statements  
 
 

Badminton World Federation is a Federation incorporated under the Societies Act 1966 and domiciled in 
Malaysia. The address of its registered office and principal place of business is as follows: 
 
Registered office and principal place of business 
 
Stadium Badminton Kuala Lumpur 
Batu 3½, Jalan Cheras, 
56000 Kuala Lumpur.  
Registration No. : 1983-05-5 
 
The Federation is principally involved in administrating, promoting, developing and popularising the sport of 
Badminton throughout the world.  
 
The financial statements were approved by the Executive Board on 5 March 2011. 
 
1 Basis of preparation 

 
(a) Statement of compliance  

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards 
(FRS), accounting principles generally accepted in Malaysia and the Constitution of the Federation. 
 
The Federation has not applied the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations 
that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet 
effective for the Federation: 

 
FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
March 2010 
• Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification of Rights Issues 

 
FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2010 
• FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards (revised) 
• FRS 3, Business Combinations (revised) 
• FRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised) 
• Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment 
• Amendments to FRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
• Amendments to FRS 138, Intangible Assets 
• IC Interpretation 12, Service Concession Agreements 
• IC Interpretation 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 
• IC Interpretation 17, Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 
• Amendments to IC Interpretation 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
 
FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2011
• Amendments to FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards 

– Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters 
– Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 

• Amendments to FRS 2, Group Cash-settled Share Based Payment Transactions 
• Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Improving Disclosures about 

Financial Instruments 
• IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease 
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1 Basis of preparation (continued) 
 

(a) Statement of compliance (continued) 
 

• IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers 
• Improvements to FRSs (2010) 

 
FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
July 2011 
• IC Interpretation 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 
• Amendments to IC Interpretation 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 
 
FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2012 
• FRS 124, Related Party Disclosures (revised) 
• IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate 
 
The Federation plans to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and interpretations: 
 

• from the annual period beginning 1 January 2011 for those standards, amendments or 
interpretations that will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 
2010, 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, except for FRS 3, FRS 127, Amendments to FRS 2, 
FRS 5 and 138, IC Interpretation 12, IC Interpretation 16, IC Interpretation 17, IC 
Interpretation 4 and IC Interpretation 18, which are not applicable to the Federation; and 

 
• from the annual period beginning 1 January 2012 for those standards, amendments or 

interpretations that will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 
and 1 January 2012, except for IC Interpretation 15 and 19 and Amendments to IC 
Interpretation 14 which are not applicable to the Federation. 

 
The initial application of a standard, an amendment or an interpretation, which will be applied 
prospectively or which requires extended disclosures, is not expected to have any material financial 
impacts to the current and prior periods financial statements upon their first adoption. 

 
The initial applications of the other standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to 
have any material impact on the financial statements of the Federation. 

 
 Following the announcement by the MASB on 1 August 2008, the Company’s financial statements 

will be prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
framework for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2012. 
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1 Basis of preparation (continued) 
 

 
(b) Basis of measurement 
   

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.  
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 
 

These financial statements are presented in US Dollar ($), which is the Federation’s functional 
currency.  
 

 (d) Use of estimates and judgments 
 
 The preparation of financial statements requires the Executive Board to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

  
 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

  
 There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 

accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. 

 
2 Significant accounting policies  

 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the Federation, other than those disclosed in 
Note 2(b) –Financial instruments. 

 
(a) Foreign currency  
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Federation at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transaction. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies reporting period are retranslated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency 
differences arising on retranslation are recognised in comprehensive income. 

 



 

 

69 
Badminton World Federation    

Financial Statements    
For the year ended 31 December 2010 

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(b) Financial instruments 
  
 Arising from the adoption of FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, with 

effect from 1 January 2010, financial instruments are categorised and measured using accounting 
policies as mentioned below.  Before 1 January 2010, different accounting policies were applied. 
Significant changes to the accounting policies are discussed in note 24. 

 
 (i) Initial recognition and measurement 
 

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position 
when, and only when, the Federation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
 
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. 
 
An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and accounted for as a 
derivative if, and only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of 
the host contract and the host contract is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss.  
The host contract, in the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted 
for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract. 

 
(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement 
 

 The Federation categorise financial instruments as follows: 
 

Financial assets 
 

 (a) Loans and receivables 
 

Loans and receivables category comprises trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents. 

 
Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 
(b) Available-for-sale financial assets 

 
Available-for-sale category comprises investment in equity securities instruments that are 
not held for trading.  
 
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active 
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.  Other 
financial assets categorised as available-for-sale are subsequently measured at their fair 
values with the gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income, except for 
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items and 
gains and losses of hedged items attributable to hedge risks of fair value hedges which are 
recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in 
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity into profit or loss. Interest 
calculated for a debt instrument using the effective interest method is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

 
All financial assets, are subject to review for impairment (see note 2(f)(i)). 
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(b) Financial instruments (continued) 
 

(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Financial liabilities  
 
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost . 

 
(iii) Derecognition 
 

 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party 
without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition 
of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and 
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or 
loss. 

 
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial 
liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
(c) Equipment 
 

(i) Recognition and measurement 
 

Items of equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and 
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its 
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on 
which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.  
 
When significant parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of equipment. 

 
(ii) Subsequent costs 
 
 The cost of replacing part of an item of equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 

the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Federation and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of those 
parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of equipment 
are recognised in the income statement as incurred. 

 
(iii) Depreciation 
 
 Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of each part of an item of equipment.  
 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:  
   • Office furniture and office equipment   5 years 

 • Computer equipment and software   3 years 
     

The depreciable amount is determined after deducting the residual value. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date. 
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(d) Receivables 
 

Prior to 1 January 2010, receivables were initially recognised at their costs and 
subsequently measured at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.  

 
 Following the adoption of FRS 139, trade and other receivables are categorised and 

measured as loans and receivables in accordance with note 2(b). 
 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 
  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly 
liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value.  

 
(f) Impairment of assets 

 
(i) Financial assets 

 
 All financial assets are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how 
likely, are not recognised.  For an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in 
the fair value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment.   

 
 An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is 

measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. 

 
(ii) Non-financial assets 
 
  The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting 

period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  
 
 If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  For the 

purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). 

 
  The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use 

and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect 
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit 
(groups of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
  Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting 

period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.  An impairment loss is reversed only 
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
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been recognised.  Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in 
which the reversals are recognised. 

 
2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

  
(g) Employee benefits 

 
Short term employee benefits 

 
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave 
and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is 
provided. 

 
A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or 
profit-sharing plans if the Federation has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 
 
The Federation’s contribution to statutory pension funds are charged to the income statement in the 
year to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Federation has no further 
payment obligations. 

  
(h) Income recognition 
 
 Tournament 
 

 Tournament income is recognised when the respective tournaments are held. 
 

Olympic income 
 

 Olympic income is recognised on an accrual basis. 
 
 Subscription 
 

 Subscription income is recognised on an accrual basis. 
 

 Interest  
 

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. 
 
 Dividend  
   
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 
 
 Other income 
 

 All other income is recognised on an accrual basis. 
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3 Olympic Development Grants 
 2010 2009
 $ $
Olympic solidarity courses   2,235 11,662
Olympic solidarity scholarships 3,410 3,679
International Federation Development Fund 70,000 80,000
Road to London 20,000 -

 _______ _______ 
 95,645 95,341 
 ======= ======= 
 
4 Tournaments 
 

(a) BWF Tournaments 
 
  These income consist of sponsorship fees and hosting fees for BWF World Championships, 

Thomas Uber Cup, Sudirman Cup and Super Series. 
 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
   
BWF tournaments   2,252,989 1,714,350 
Super Series income 400,000 1,300,000 

 _______ _______ 
 2,652,989 3,014,350 
 ======= ======= 

(b) Open Badminton Events  
 
  These income consist of sanction fees, withdrawals fees, prize money retained, cancellation fees 

and disciplinary committee ruling fines linked to Super Series and open badminton events. 
 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
Sanction fees   405,000 398,000 
Withdrawals fees 23,075 24,600 
Super Series prize money retained 4,541 25,969 
Events cancellation fees (3,000) (24,000) 
Disciplinary Committee Ruling fines 1,500 4,000 

 _______ _______ 
 431,116 428,569 
 ======= ======= 
5 Other Income 
  

These income consist of income earned from equipment approval scheme and merchandising and 
insurance claims. 
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6 Continental Grants  
 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
   
Continental development grant  1,024,000  1,024,000 
Returns of subscription  159,537    162,180 
TUC preliminary grants 230,000 - 
Equipment donation 50,000 63,799 

 _______ _______ 
 1,463,537 1,249,979 
 ======= ======= 

 
Continental development grant relates to grants to the five Continental Federations to support the 
development of badminton in those regions. 

 
 2010 2009 
         $         $ 

Badminton Confederation of Africa 194,000 194,000 
Badminton Asia Confederation 278,000 278,000 
Badminton Europe 278,000 278,000 
Oceania Badminton Confederation   74,000   74,000 
Badminton Pan American Confederation 200,000 200,000 

 _______ _______ 
 1,024,000 1,024,000 
 ======= ======= 
 
7 Coaching Development  

 2010 2009
        $        $
  
Coaches education   29,300                 - 
Itinerant coaches      6,314         6,180 
Olympic solidarity courses      7,180        13,753 

 _______ _______ 
 42,794 19,933 
 ======= ======= 
8 Training Centres 
 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
   
Saarbrucken Training Center 80,772 60,421 

 ======= ======= 
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9 Other Development Activities 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 

Road show 13,584 10,684 
Badminton for disabled 22,912 13,473 
Women in sports 13,866 1,229 
Special development for World Junior Championship 8,978 6,003 
School project 27,095 - 
Development online survey 3,940 - 

 _______ _______ 
 90,375 31,389 
 ======= ======= 
 
10 Council and committees 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 

Council 168,160 142,273 
Executive Committee 67,579 64,905 
President and Deputy President’s expenses 12,226 13,489 
Administration Committee 17,795 8,297 
Development Committee 36,022 18,005 
Events Committee 41,604 48,028 
Finance Committee 503 11,517 
Marketing Committee 5,215 6,633 
IOC/International Relations Committee 17,689 27,165 
Athlete Commission 14,357 16,463 

 _______ _______ 
 381,150 356,775 
 ======= ======= 
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11 General and administrative expenses  
The general and administrative expenses can be analysed as follows: 
 
 2010 2009 

 
$ 
 

$ 
 

Staff costs (see note 11(a)) 625,012 582,255 
Other staffs cost including recruitment cost 26,824 34,576 
Staff travelling and expenses 11,950 5,882 
Office general administrative expenses 31,633 36,274 
Other office, property and utilities costs 17,503 27,157 
Computer consumables and network maintenance inclusive web project 
cost 64,053 80,895 

 _______ _______ 
 776,975 767,039 
 ======= ======= 

11(a) Staff costs  
 

 Number of employees 
 2010 2009 
   
 Full time 13 11 
 Part time 1 2 

 _______ _______ 
 14 13 
 ====== ====== 

   
 2010 2009 
  $ $ 

Employee costs   
   
 Wages and salaries  596,810 559,345 
 Social Security Contribution 1,469 1,098 
 Employees’ Provident Fund 26,733 21,812 

 _______ _______ 
 625,012 582,255 
 ====== ====== 
  
12 Legal and professional charges 
 

 2010 2009 
 $ $ 

Legal fees 11,222 15,166
Tax consultant fees 3,611 2,298
Other professional fees - service tax 1,484 -

 _______ _______ 
 16,317 17,464 
 ======= ======= 
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13 Equipment 

 Office 
furniture 

and office 
equipment 

 
 

Computer 
 software 

 
 

Computer 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 
 $ $ $ $ 
Cost     
At 1 January 2009 45,185 271,389 56,064 372,638 
Additions  435 32,005 12,438 44,878 
Written off - (253,609) (5,290) (258,899) 
                                                             
At 31 December 2009 / 1 January 2010 45,620 49,785 63,212 158,617 
Additions  1,282 32,433 16,102 49,817 
                                                             
At 31 December 2010 46,902 82,218 79,314 208,434 
                                                             
Accumulated depreciation     
At 1 January 2009 40,004 265,544 46,790 352,338 
Charge for the year 5,183 13,643 9,862 28,688 
Written off - (253,609) (4,496) (258,105) 
                                                             
At 31 December 2009 / 1 January 2010 45,187 25,578 52,156 122,921 
Charge for the year 655 32,081 4,547 37,283 
Written off - - - - 
                                                             
At 31 December 2010 45,842 57,659 56,703 160,204 
                                                             
 
Carrying amounts 

    

At 1 January 2009 5,181 5,845 9,274 20,300 
                                                             
At 31 December 2009 / 1 January 2010 433 24,207 11,056 35,696 
                                                             
At 31 December 2010 1,060 24,559 22,611 48,230 
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14 Interest and dividends 
     2010 2009 
 President    President  
 Fund WJC Fund Other Fund WJC Fund Other 
 $ $ $ $ $ $
  
      

Bank interest - - 2,634 39  - 1,760 
Interest on investments 174 355 5,773 - 518 41,612 
Dividends received - - 937 - - 488  
 _______ ________ _______ ______ _______ ________ 

 174    355 9,344 39  518 43,860 
 ====== ======= ====== ===== ====== ======= 

 

15 Investments - Quoted shares 

  

Quoted 
shares 

$ 
2010 
Available-for-sale financial assets -  
 ======  
 
2009 
At cost 33,126 
Less:  Allowance for diminution in value of investments (6,679) 

 _______  
 26,447  
  ======  

Market value:   
Quoted shares 26,447 

 ====== 
 

The comparative figures as at 31 December 2009 have not been presented based on the new categorisation 
of financial assets resulting from the adoption of FRS 139 by virtue of the exemption given in FRS 
7.44AA.  

 
16 Trade and other receivables 

  2010 2009 
  $ $ 

Trade  
Trade receivables    1,770,466 2,036,507
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts   (750,000) (750,000)

 _______ _______ 
 1,020,466 1,286,507 
 ------------ ------------ 

Non-trade   
Other receivables   292,523 391,347

 _______ _______ 
 1,312,989 1,677,854 
 ======= ======= 
 

An overdue trade receivable of US $100,000 was recovered from the used of President Kang Young 
Joong’s Fund. 
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17 Cash and cash equivalents 
 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
Cash and bank balances 5,603,294 6,603,412
Deposits placed with financial institutions 2,391,526 850,416

 _______ _______ 
 7,994,820 7,453,828 
 ======= ======= 
18 FS Coaching Fund 
 

The FS Coaching Fund represents a gift of US$10,000. Interest generated by this fund is used for 
coaching. 
 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
At beginning and end of year 10,000 10,000 

 ======= ======= 
19 World Junior Championships Fund 
 
 During 1992, the Federation received US$300,000 from the sponsors of the first World Junior 

Championships. Income generated by this fund is to be used for the championships. 
 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
At beginning of year 301,491 300,000
Contribution received for the year from Dr. Justian Suhandinata 1,780 1,491
Interest on fund  (Note 14) 355 518
Transfer to tournament income (355) (518)

 _______ _______ 
At end of year  303,271 301,491 

 ======= ======= 
20 President Kang Young Joong’s Fund 
 
 In 2010, the Federation received US$118,519 (2009 : US$330,245) from President Dr. Kang Young 

Joong. The Fund and the income generated from this Fund is to be used for: 
1) assisting Continental Confederations in their development activities; 
2) assisting in developing badminton for the disabled; 
3) assisting events development/ activities and prize money; and  
4) assisting other projects as defined by Dr. Kang Young Joong 
 2010 2009 
 $ $ 
At beginning of year 148,201 307,917
Interest on fund (note 14) 174 39
Fund received during the year 118,519 330,245
Fund distributed during the year  (100,000) (490,000)

 _______ _______ 
At end of year  166,894 148,201 

 ======= ======= 
During the financial year, the Executive Board has approved to use the President Kang Young Joong’s 
Fund of US $100,000 to support the recovering of an overdue trade receivable (Note 16). 
 
List of fund distributed in year 2009: 

1) US $250,000 to Continental Confederation as development fund 
2) US $50,000 contributed to badminton for disabled activities 
3) US $65,000 contributed to support the Super Series Master Final 2009 expenses 
4) US $125,000 contributed to support the prize money for tournaments
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21  Payables and accruals 

 2010 2009 
Non-trade $ $ 
Non-current   
Deferred income 17,051 326,671 

  ---------- ---------- 
Current   
Other payables  599,836 607,338
Accruals and deferred income 2,223,484 369,900

 _______ _______ 
 2,823,320 977,238 

 ----------- ------------ 
 2,840,371 1,303,909 

 ======= ======= 
 Included in other payables is US $478,954 (2009: US $556,275) owing to members/players for 

outstanding prize monies. 
 
22 Taxation  
 
 The current taxation in the income statement represents taxation at current tax rates based on 

interest received. 
  2010 2009 
 $ $ 
Current tax expense   
Under provision in prior year - 3,443

 ======= ======= 
Reconciliation of tax expense   
Deficit for the financial year (1,179,863) (1,176,740)

 ------------- ------------ 
Tax calculated using Malaysia tax rates     
Non-deductible expenses                                                                                    

      (294,966) 
4,216 

     (289,720)
-

Deferred tax assets not recognised in respect of current year’s tax losses 290,750 289,720
 Under provision in prior year  - 3,443  
 ------------- ------------- 

 - 3,443  
 ======== ======== 

Tax exemption 
 During the financial year, the Federation successfully obtained the tax exemption granted by the 

Ministry of Finance. The tax exemption is granted for the statutory level on all income of the 
Federation’s official activities (except for income on dividends) for a period of 6 years beginning year 
of assessment 2005 to 2010. The Federation is currently awaiting approval in obtaining the status as 
an International Organisation from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Malaysia, to enable the Federation 
to apply for tax exemption beyond year of assessment 2010.  

 
 Unrecognised deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: 
  2010 2009 
 $ $ 
Tax loss and unabsorbed capital allowance carry-forward 2,396,000 1,233,000 
  ======== ======== 

 
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the Federation can utilise the benefits 
there from. 
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23 Financial instruments 
 

Certain comparative figures have not been presented for 31 December 2009 by virtue of the exemption 
given in paragraph 44AA of FRS 7. 

 
23.1  Categories of financial instruments 
 

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments of the Federation categorised as 
loans and receivables.   

   
          Carrying 
               amount 
                                                      $’ 000 

2010 
Financial assets 

  Trade and other receivables                           1,313 
Cash and cash equivalents                            7,995 

                                                  _______ 
                                                       9,308   
                                                  ======= 

Financial liabilities 
Amortised costs 
Other payables                                  (600) 

              ======= 
  

23.2 Financial risk management 
 

The Federation has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 

• Credit risk 
• Market risk 

 
23.3 Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Federation if the counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.   

 
 Receivables 
Risk management objectives, policies and process for managing the risk 
 
The Federation has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an 
ongoing basis.  

 
 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral 

 
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables 
is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. 

  
 Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor 

impaired are measured at their realisable values. The Federation uses ageing analysis to monitor the 
credit quality of the receivables and monitors them individually.  
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23 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

23.3 Credit risk (continued) 
 
Impairment losses 

 
 The ageing of receivables as at the end of the reporting period was: 
 
    Individual Collective 
  Note Gross impairment  impairment Net 
   $ $ $ $ 
 2010 
 Not past due  518,136 - - 518,136 
 Past due 1 – 30 days  3,770 - - 3,770 
 Past due 31 – 60 days  223,250 - - 223,250 
 Past due more than 61 days  1,317,833 (750,000) - 567,833 
    __________________________________________ 
   16 2,062,989 (750,000) - 1,312,989 
    ===================================== 
 
 During 2010, the Federation renegotiated the terms of a trade receivable of US $291,195 from an 

overdue counterparty. If it had not been for this renegotiation, the receivables would have been 
overdue by 360 days. No impairment loss was recognised (2009: Nil). 

 
  
23.4 Market risk 
  
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates 

and other prices will affect the Federation’s financial position or cash flow. 
 
23.4.1 Interest rate risk 
 

The Federation’s investment in quoted shares, investments in deposits and short term receivables 
and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.  

  
23.4.2 Currency risk 
 

The Federation is exposed to foreign currency risk on investment in deposits and income and 
expenditure that are denominated in a currency other than US Dollars. The currencies giving rise to 
this risk are primarily Pounds Sterling, Danish Krone, Euro and Ringgit Malaysia. Currently, the 
Federation does not hedge these exposures. However, the Executive Board keeps this policy under 
review. 
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23 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

23.4 Market risk (continued) 
 
23.4.2 Currency risk (continued) 
 

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk 
 
In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than US$, the Federation 
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies 
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances. 
 
Exposure to foreign currency risk 
 
The Federation’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional 
currency of the Federation) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period 
was: 
   

   Cash  Trade     
  and cash and other Other Net 
  equivalents receivables payables exposure 

2010 
Denominated in US $ 
 

  
 MYR 319,245 295,397 17,000 597,642 
 GBP 38,131 - - 38,131  
 CHF 33,697 - - 33,697 
 Others 4,422 - - 4,422  
   __________________________________________ 
 Total 395,495 295,397 17,000 673,892 
          ====================================== 

 
Currency risk sensitivity analysis 
 
A 10% strengthening of the US Dollar against the following currencies at the end of the reporting 
period would have increased/(decreased) equity and post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown 
below.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remained constant 
and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases. 

   
  Profit 
  $ 
2010  
MYR  59,764 
GBP  3,813 
CHF  3,370 
Others  442 
  ===== 

 
A 10% weakening of US Dollar against the above currencies at the end of the reporting period 
would have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on 
the basis that all other variables remained constant. 

 
 

23.4.2 Other price risk 
 

The Federation is not exposed to any other price risk. 
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23 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
23.5 Fair values of financial instruments 
 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables 
approximate fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments. 

 
 
24 Significant changes in accounting policies 
 

24.1  FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
 
 The adoption of FRS 139 has resulted in several changes to accounting policies relating to 

recognition and measurement of financial instruments. Significant changes in accounting policies 
are as follows: 

 
 Investment in equity securities 
 
 Prior to adoption of FRS 139, investment in non-current equity securities were stated at cost less 

allowance for diminution in value which is other than temporary. With the adoption of FRS 139, 
quoted investment in non-current equity securities are now categories and measured as available-
for-sales in note 2(b). 

 
 The carrying amount of the quoted investment in non-current equity securities in year 2009 has 

been written down to its market value. Hence, it does not require the adjustment of the opening 
balance of capital reserves.    
 
Impairment of trade and other receivables 

  
 Prior to the adoption of FRS 139, an allowance for doubtful debts was made when a receivable is 

considered irrecoverable by the management.  With the adoption of FRS 139, an impairment loss is 
recognised for trade and other receivables and is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. 

 
 
24.2 FRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements (revised) 
 
 Arising from the adoption of FRS 101 (revised), income statement for the year ended 31 December 

2009 have been re-presented as statement of comprehensive income.  All non-owner changes in 
equity that were presented in the statement of changes in equity are now included in the statement 
of comprehensive income as other comprehensive income.  Consequently, components of 
comprehensive income are not presented in the statement of changes in equity. 
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25 Comparative figures 
  

Restatement and reclassification of balances 
Certain comparative figures of the Federation have been restated and reclassified to conform with 
current’s year presentation. Summary of the changes in comparative figure are as below: 

  
             2009        2009 
  
 Statement of comprehensive income  As restated As previously stated 
 
 Expenditure 
  

Marketing publications        5,818              76,350 
General and administrative expenses     767,039      696,507 
                                               ========    ========  
 
In the current year, website maintenance expenses used for marketing publications purpose are presented 
in the general and administrative expenses. Therefore, the comparative amounts have been restated to 
conform with current year’s presentation. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2011 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Badminton World Federation will be held in 
China Hall 3, (second floor) Shangri-la Hotel Qingdao, 9 Xiang Gang Zhong Lu, Qingdao, 266071 China on Saturday 
28 May 2011 at 1000 hours. 

1. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 

1.1 President’s Remarks 
1.2 Appointment of scrutineers 
1.3 Roll call 

 

2. MINUTES 

2.1 To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Saturday 15 May 2010. 
 

3. COUNCIL REPORT 

3.1 To receive the Report of Council and its Committees, and other reports for the year ending 31 

December 2010.  
3.2 To adopt the Financial Statements, duly audited, for the year ending 31 December 2010. 
3.3 To receive the 2011 budget and the provisional budget for 2012.  

 

4. PROPOSAL – BWF COUNCIL 

The Council of the BWF proposes the following amendments to the BWF Constitution to the membership 
for approval.  

See Annexure A for the proposed wording for each of the Clauses – 3.12, 8, 13, 14 and 20. 

4.1 Clause 3.12 – New clause under Section 1 – General Provisions 

To include a definition of Para-badminton. 

4.2 Clause 8 

To include references to Para-badminton (alongside Badminton) in the Purpose and Objectives – 
Clauses 8.2, 8.14, 8.17. 

To amend 8.12 to include the term “for people of all abilities”. 

4.3 Clause 13 – Section 2 – Membership 
 
To clarify the term Associate Member to make it clearer. 

To allow those national organizations, clubs or organizations who have Para-badminton players as 
Members and / or serve the needs of Para-badminton players to become Associate Members of the 
BWF. 

4.4 Clause 14 – Admission to Membership 
 
To streamline the membership application process. 

To delete Clause 14.5 – Special Circumstances. 
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4.5 Clause 20 – Officers – Section 4 – Council 
 
To include a new Vice President position responsible for Paralympic Relations who is elected by the 
AGM on a four year term as for the Vice President responsible for Olympic Relations. 
 
If the membership approves the above, to delegate the Council to appoint an acting VP responsible for 
Paralympic Relations until elections could be held for this position in 2013. 

 

5. PROPOSAL - CHINESE BADMINTON ASSOCIATION 

The Chinese Badminton Association proposes amendments as follows to Clause 9 of the Laws of 
Badminton. 

5.1 Laws of Badminton  

9.1 – In a correct serve: 

Current 

9.1.5 the whole shuttle shall be below the server’s waist at the instant of being hit by the 
server’s racket. The waist shall be considered to be an imaginary line round the body level 
with the lowest part of the server’s bottom rib; 

9.1.6 the shaft of the server’s racket at the instant of hitting the shuttle shall be pointing in a 
downward direction; 

 

Proposed 

9.1.5  the whole shuttle shall be below the height of 125 – 140 centimeters at the instant of being 
hit by the server’s racket. 

9.1.6  DELETE 

Alternative 

9.1.5 DELETE 
9.1.6 the shaft of the server’s racket at the instant of hitting the shuttle shall be pointing in a 

downward direction: 
 

Rationale 

Replace the existing rule with a consistent height for all players/servers. Equal for all players. Easier for 
service judges to be accurate. More consistent service judging. Fairer for female players in Mixed 
Doubles events to be able to serve at the same height as men. Easier for spectators to understand the 
rules of serving. 

 

5.2 PROPOSAL - PBSI 

PBSI is proposing to add a new Clause 20.3 and to add additional wording to Clause 25.1 of the BWF 
Constitution. 
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5.2.1 Clause 20 – Officers 
To insert a new Clause 20.3 so that besides the five Vice Presidents appointed by the five Continental 
Confederations and Vice President responsible for Olympic Relations, the President and the Deputy 
President have the prerogative right to appoint a maximum of two Vice Presidents from the current 
Council Members. 

The proposed wording for a new Clause 20.3 is: 

20.3 The President in agreement with the Deputy President can appoint a maximum of two 
additional Vice Presidents from the current Council Members, if necessary. Such 
appointment can be changed in agreement between the President and the Deputy 
President 

 

Rationale 

 

To fill in some vacant positions due to unavoidable hindrance or inactivity of the Vice President(s) and 
this can be disturbing to the performance of their work. 

 

5.2.2 Clause 25 – Executive Board 
To include the following wording to Clause 25.1 so that the President and the Deputy President have the 
prerogative right to appoint a maximum of two additional Executive Board members from the current 
Council: 

 “Furthermore the President in agreement with the deputy President can appoint a 
maximum of two additional members of the Executive Board. Such appointment can be 
changed in agreement between the President and Deputy President”. 

So that Clause 25.1 reads: 

25.1 The Federation shall have an Executive Board comprising the Officers (Clause 20) and the 
Chairs of the Committees formed by Council and identified by Council as Executive Board 
positions. 

 
Furthermore the President in agreement with the deputy President can appoint a maximum 
of two additional members of the Executive Board. Such appointment can be changed in 
agreement between the President and Deputy President. 

 
Rationale 

To strengthen the Executive Board since the role of the Executive Board is very important. 

This proposal was seconded by Badminton Asia Confederation. 

 

6. SUSPENSION – PAKISTAN BADMINTON FEDERATION 

 As per Clause 15.9 of the Constitution, to confirm or remove the suspension of the  

 Pakistan Badminton Federation imposed by Council 
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7. SUBSCRIPTION 

To consider Council’s proposal that the unit of subscription for the year 2012 should be set at US$200 per 
unit (unchanged). 

 
8. AUDITORS 

Council proposes that the services of KPMG Kuala Lumpur be maintained. 

 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 

10. NEXT MEETING 

The next Annual General Meeting is schedule to be held in May 2012. 

 

By order of the Council of the Federation. 

 

Thomas Lund 

Chief Operating Officer 

8 April 2011 
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